
  1 

 

Agenda 

   
 
Contact Officer: Michael Flowers, Democratic Services Officer 
Tel: 07895 213755 

 

E-mail: Michael.Flowers@southandvale.gov.uk 
Date: 27th June 2022 
Website: www.southoxon.gov.uk  www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk 
 

 
 

A MEETING OF THE 

Joint Audit and Governance Committee 

 
WILL BE HELD ON TUESDAY 5 JULY 2022  AT 6.30 PM 
FIRST FLOOR MEETING SPACE, 135 EASTERN AVENUE, MILTON PARK, 
OX14 4SB 
 
To watch this virtual meeting, follow this link to the council’s YouTube channel.   
 

Members of the Committee: 
South Oxfordshire District Council 

Mocky Khan (Co-Chair) 

Peter Dragonetti 

George Levy 

Jane Murphy 

Vale of White Horse District Council 

Andy Foulsham (Co-Chair) 

Amos Duveen 

Simon Howell 

Mike Pighills 

 

Preferred Substitutes: 
South Oxfordshire District Council 

David Bartholomew 

Sam Casey-Rerhaye 

Victoria Haval 

Alexandrine Kantor 

Axel Macdonald 

Jo Robb 

Alan Thompson 

David Turner 

Ian White 

Celia Wilson 

Vale of White Horse District Council 

Nathan Boyd 

Andy Cooke 

Eric de la Harpe 

Alison Jenner 

Ben Mabbett 

Elaine Ware 

 

 

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These 
include large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any 
other special requirements (such as access facilities) please contact 
the officer named on this agenda.  Please give as much notice as 
possible before the meeting. 

 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCTj2pCic8vzucpzIaSWE3UQ


  2 

 

1  Apologies for absence   
 

To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members.   

 
2  Minutes  (Pages 4 - 9) 

 
To adopt and sign as a correct record the Joint Audit and Governance Committee 
minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday 24 May 2022.  
 
3  Declarations of interest   

 
To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests, other registrable interests 
and non-registrable interests or any conflicts of interest in respect of items on the 
agenda for this meeting.  

 
4  Urgent business and chair's announcements   

 
To receive notification of any matters which the chair determines should be 
considered as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the 
matters urgent, and to receive any announcements from the chair.   
 
5  Public participation   

 
To receive any questions or statements from members of the public that have 
registered to speak.   
 

ITEMS FOR FORMAL DECISION 

 
6  Amended Pension Policy and Policy Statements  (Pages 10 - 61) 

 
To consider the report of the Head of Corporate Services. 

 

MONITORING REPORTS 

 
7  Internal audit activity report - first quarter 2022/23  (Pages 62 - 

65) 
 

To consider the report of the Internal Audit Manager. 

 
8  Internal audit management report - first quarter 2022/23  

(Pages 66 - 70) 
 

To consider the report of the Internal Audit Manager. 

 
9  Internal audit annual report 2021/22  (Pages 71 - 82) 

 
To consider the report of the Internal Audit Manager. 



  3 

 

 
10  Health and safety progress review  (Pages 83 - 87) 

 
To consider the report of the Head of Corporate Services. 

 
11  Corporate risk review  (Pages 88 - 97) 

 
To consider the report of the Head of Policy and Programmes. 

 
12  Work programme  (Pages 98 - 101) 

 
To note the committee’s work programme. 

 
Patrick Arran 
Head of Legal and Democratic 

 

 
 



 1 

Minutes 

 

  

OF A MEETING OF THE 
 

 

Joint Audit and Governance Committee 

 
HELD ON TUESDAY 24 MAY 2022 AT 6.30 PM 
135 EASTERN AVENUE, MILTON PARK, OX14 4SB 
 
The meeting was live streamed, and the recording can be watched here: 
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=4DHyQy9Rr9w 

 
 

Present in the meeting room  
Members: 
South Oxfordshire District Councillors:   
Mocky Khan (Co chair), Peter Dragonetti, George Levy 
 
Vale of White Horse District Councillors:  
Andy Foulsham (Co chair, chairing the meeting), Ben Mabbett (substitute) and Mike 
Pighills 
 
Officers: Simon Hewings, Head of Finance and Section 151 Officer. 
Candida Mckelvey, Democratic Services Officer 
 

Remote attendance:  
Councillors: Amos Duveen (Vale) 
Officers: Patrick Arran, Head of Legal and Democratic, Richard Spraggett, Strategic 
Finance Manager & Deputy S151 Officer, Victoria Dorman Smith, Internal Audit Manager. 
Guests: Kevin Suter, Associate Partner for external auditor, EY. 
 
Note:   South Oxfordshire District Council may be referred to as “South” 

Vale of White Horse District Council may be referred to as “Vale” 
 When referring to both councils, they may be referred to as “the councils” 

 

1 Apologies for absence  
 
Apologies were received from Councillor Jane Murphy. Apologies were also received from 
Councillor Simon Howell, and Councillor Ben Mabbett attended as a substitute for 
Councillor Howell. 
Councillor Amos Duveen had to attend virtually.  
 

2 Minutes  
 
Resolved 
The minutes of the last meeting on 29 March 2022 were approved by the committee. 

Page 4

Agenda Item 2

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=4DHyQy9Rr9w


 2 

 

3 Declarations of interest  
 
There were no declarations of interest in respect to items on the agenda. 
 

4 Urgent business and chair's announcements  
 
Chair informed the committee that the meeting in July will be held remotely, as there will 
be no formal decision making arising from the agenda items planned for the meeting. 
 
Later in the year, a November meeting will be held to sign off the 2021-22 accounts. The 
plan at this stage was to have a standalone meeting as it was a substantial item to 
consider. Other standing items will be considered in a separate meeting. 
 

5 Public participation  
 
There was no public participation. 
 

6 External auditor's audit results report - 2020/21  
 
Kevin Suter from EY presented two audit result reports for both councils. The report 
informed the committee of audit findings, in order to inform the sign off of the statement of 
accounts. 
 
Kevin had reported that there had been improvement in the accounts sign off timings after 
a challenging few years. He thanked the officers involved for their support of the audit 
process, which had led to improvements. 
 
Kevin summarised the main findings for South Oxfordshire District Council: 

 The audit had been substantially completed, with a few amendments made and the 
documents had been corrected and the committee was provided with the final 
versions for signing at this meeting. 

 Key areas of risk were presented in January, and this was reported in the 
document. The details can be found in the reports. In summary, Kevin was pleased 
to report no identified fraud, and also commented on some errors identified that had 
since been corrected by officers, which were down to error or gaps in knowledge / 
experience. 

 On page 21, there were two findings regarding the estimate – one was yield used in 
the valuation of a property, the second finding was on process – a detailed 
valuation report hadn’t been obtained from the valuer. Management had responded 
appropriately to ensure it would not happen again. 

 Page 22 – pension valuations: gross liability estimates were made by EY – no 
issues reported. 

 Page 23 – there were two issues, firstly an existing CIL accounting issue was being 
worked on, to ensure resolution. There was one small error reported, which was a 
significant improvement from the previous year. Secondly, Covid related grants, 
which were a new scheme, were considered by audit, taking into account how those 
funds were handled. Auditor considered that this was well managed by the council. 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 3 

Overall, the few errors found were viewed as immaterial and officers were asked to 
respond to those to explain why those should remain unadjusted for committee approval. 
The unqualified opinion was in section three of the report. 
 
The value for money arrangements were set out in section five of the report. Financial 
sustainability was the issue identified. The council had acknowledged previous advice, so 
the direction of travel was positive on this issue and was improving as the auditor would 
expect to see. 
 
Small error identified in graphs on page 35. Data was for the 2021 MTFP (yellow) and the 
2022 MTFP update (grey). 
 
The financial environment was still challenging and uncertain in Local Government – this 
will remain an area of focus as the challenges were still present – however it was 
concluded that the auditor was satisfied and that the council had appropriate 
arrangements in place. 
 
Committee members were invited to ask questions. 

 It was confirmed that the data model for business rates had been corrected, and the 
accounts were now correct. A checking service will be used in future for business 
rates. 

 Thanks were given to Kevin Suter and to the officers for quick responses to the 
findings. 

 Positive feedback given on the report style. Suggested adding an appendix for 
acronyms. 

 The risk of inflation was raised by a committee member – how would the council 
deal with that in future. 

 
 
Kevin Suter introduced the report for Vale. 
The key messages are similar to South. The corrections had been made and were 
presented ready for account sign off tonight. 

 The risk identified was a duplicate accrual. A recharge issue as at South was 
identified at Vale too, and management has amended this for both councils. The 
detailed valuation report was also flagged as it was for South. 

 CIL accounting issues had been resolved, and the auditor confirmed that Covid  
funding had been handled well. 

 The unqualified opinion was given at section three of the report. 
 
Value for money at section five  - as at South, auditors had identified that managers were 
consistently applying process to challenge their budget assumptions and projections. The 
positive direction of travel means that the auditor was satisfied that Vale had appropriate 
arrangements in place. The uncertainty and challenges were still to be a focus for the 
council – the same message as South. 
 
In response to a question, Richard Spraggett responded that the £2.9 million asset not on 
the register was a community centre that was given to the council by developers for £0 
and was therefore not on the register. The new valuation means it had been added to the 
register. 
 
 

Page 6

Agenda Item 2



 4 

 
Resolved: 
The committee members for South Oxfordshire District Council received the audit results 
report 2020-21 from EY and approved of it. 
 
Resolved: 
The committee members for Vale of White Horse District Council received the audit results 
report 2020-21 from EY and approved of it. 
 

7 Statement of accounts - 2020/21  
 
Strategic Finance Manager opened this item and explained there were some minor 
changes made as follows: 
South: 

 Page 17: the prior year balance needed to be changed to £159.6 million 

 Page 69: the going concern note – forecast general reserves – the figure should be 
43.1 million 

 
Vale: 

 Page 37: The council’s operational assets had been valued and the date should be 
31 March 2021. 

 
Questions: 

 Page 19: Non-domestic rates (NDRs), a query on the deficit – it was explained by 
Head of Finance that it was an accounting deficit for 2020-21, some business rates 
were given relief due to the pandemic, so less money was collected. Section 31 
grant compensates the council for that, but that doesn’t go through the collection 
fund, making it in deficit. The council gets funding through the general fund to 
compensate for the collection fund deficit. 

 Page 44: debtors on paragraph 9 – the key figure was the loan to Soha. The figure 
will contain a mix of council tax and NDR debtors. 

 
Both councils were required to vote on whether the statement of account was to be 
approved. Councils voted separately and the result was as follows. 
 
Resolved: 
South Oxfordshire District Council members of the committee voted in favour and 
therefore their statement of accounts for 2020-21 was approved. The Co-chair for South 
Oxfordshire would sign these at the end of the meeting. 
 
Resolved: 
Vale of White Horse District Council members of the committee voted in favour and 
therefore their statement of accounts for 2020-21 was approved. The Co-chair for Vale of 
White Horse would sign these at the end of the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



 5 

8 Annual governance statements - 2020/21  
 
Democratic Services Officer opened this item, briefly explaining the purpose of the 
statement which was a record of the council’s compliance with its code of governance, 
which formed part of the statement of accounts and was submitted alongside it. The 
committee had been sent signed copies. 
 
When committee was asked if they had any comments on this item, it was commented that 
the statements were clear to read which was helpful to those new to what the council 
does. 
 
The committee voted on whether to approve of the annual governance statement. 
 
Resolved: 
South Oxfordshire District Council members of the committee voted in favour and 
therefore their annual governance statement for 2020-21 was approved.  
 
Resolved: 
Vale of White Horse District Council members of the committee voted in favour and 
therefore their annual governance statement for 2020-21 was approved.  
 
 

9 Letters of representation to the external auditor  
 
Head of Finance informed the committee that a few pages of the South letter was missing 
from the agenda pack in error. To remedy this, he had circulated full printed copies to the 
committee and it had been republished to the website. The content was similar to that of 
the Vale letter, so there was no added information in the missing part, but for 
completeness we had now provided the full letter. Committee voted separately by council, 
on whether the letter shall be approved for sign off. 
 
Resolved: 
South Oxfordshire District Council members of the committee voted in favour and 
therefore their letter of representation from the external auditor for 2020-21 was approved. 
The Co-chair for South Oxfordshire would sign this at the end of the meeting. 
 
Resolved: 
Vale of White Horse District Council members of the committee voted in favour and 
therefore their letter of representation from the external auditor for 2020-21 was approved. 
The Co-chair for Vale of White Horse would sign this at the end of the meeting. 
 
 

10 Work programme  
 
Democratic Services Officer informed committee that the previous request at the last 
meeting for an update on the corporate landlord project was currently being looked into, 
and it will be added to the work programme once we have received a response from the 
relevant officers. 
 
The committee suggested the following: 

Page 8

Agenda Item 2



 6 

- Including the Homes for Ukraine scheme on the work programme as it was a use of 
council resources. Head of Finance added that relevant officers would look into this. 

- A query as to whether we had any investments in Russia – asked for confirmation. 
Head of Finance added that there were no direct investments. 

 
Resolved: 
The committee noted the Joint Audit and Governance Committee work programme. 
 
 
 
 
The meeting closed at 7.20 pm 
 
 
 
Chair Date 

 

 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 2



JOINT AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 

 
  
Report of the Head of Corporate Services 

Author: David Fairall, People & Culture Manager 

Telephone: 07917 088340 

E-mail: david.fairall@southandvale.gov.uk 

SODC cabinet member responsible:  

Councillor Andrea Powell 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

6 
 

E-mail: andrea.powell@southoxon.gov.uk 

Telephone: 07882 584120 

VWHDC cabinet member responsible:  

Councillor Debby Hallett 

Telephone: 07545 241013 

E-mail: debby.hallett@whitehorsedc.gov.uk 

To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee 

DATE: 5th July 2022 

 

Amended Pension Policy and Policy 

Statements 

Recommendation(s) 

1. (a) That the committee agrees for both councils to adopt the amended pension 
policy and respective policy statements for each council. 

 

Purpose of Report 

2. The Local Government Pension Scheme states the following: 

“It is a statutory requirement to prepare, consult and publish your policy statement, 
which promotes open administration, helps build awareness of pension provisions 
and ensures correct pension benefit payments. All employers should:  

 prepare and publish written policy statements under LGPS Regulations, 
Compensation Regulations and Injury Allowance Regulations 

 send a copy to Oxfordshire Pension Fund 
Page 10

Agenda Item 6



 set out and implement a review process” 

3. The current policy was last updated in 2014 and then not reviewed again before 
the HR service was outsourced, so, through the submitted updates, we are 
ensuring we both comply with our statutory requirements and that the content of 
the related documentation is up-to-date and accurate. 

Strategic Objectives  

4. To comply with the statutory requirements outlined by the Local Government 
Pension Scheme. 

Background 

5. Marcia Slater, HR Operational Lead, became a committee member for the 
Oxfordshire Pension Fund in 2021. Using this expertise, she led the review of 
these policies. 

6. Having obtained the latest templates and guidance (including the revised 
guidance for discretionary policies issued in 2021), Marcia updated all relevant 
documents and circulated to Simon Hewings, Head of Finance, and David Fairall, 
People and Culture Manager, for first review and feedback. 

7. When this version was agreed, the documents were then forwarded to Adrianna 
Partridge, Deputy Chief Executive – Transformation and Operations, and Patrick 
Arran, Head of Legal and Democratic, for further review and comment, followed 
by consultation with Unison, in accordance with our internal HR policy approval 
procedure. 

8. These documents have now been sent to SMT, who will review on 29 June 2022, 
and the Joint Audit and Governance Committee, who we are seeking final 
approval from on 5 July 2022. 

9. In accordance with the LGPS procedure, we would then send these as final 
versions to the Oxfordshire Pension Fund and communicate to all council 
colleagues. 

Climate and Ecological Impact Implications 

10. No direct impact. 

Financial Implications 

11. Any council decision that has financial implications must be made with the 
knowledge of the councils’ overarching financial position. For South, the position 
reflected in the councils’ medium-term financial plan (MTFP) as reported to Full 
Council in February 2022 showed that it is due to receive £2.1 million less in 
revenue funding than it plans to spend in 2022/23.  For Vale, a balanced budget 
was set in 2022/23 but there is expected to be a budget gap in future years.  

12. The funding gap at both councils is predicted to increase to over £3 million by 
2026/27. As there remains no certainty on future local government funding, 
following the announcement of a one-year spending review by government, and as 
the long-term financial consequences of the Coronavirus pandemic remain 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



unknown, this gap could increase further. Every financial decision made needs to 
be cognisant of the need to address the funding gap in future years. 

13. These documents have been designed in collaboration with Simon Hewings, Head 
of Finance. Optional or discretionary elements, which would incur additional costs 
to the councils, have generally been excluded, meaning this policy adheres to 
statutory minimum requirements. 

Legal Implications 

14. We have a statutory duty to update and publish these documents. 

Risks 

15. As well as legal risks, failure to comply could mean a risk to the councils in the 
examples of individual health or employment situations, where termination of 
employment occurs and the person is of pensionable age. 

Conclusion 
 
16. Within the constitution, duties of the Joint Audit and Governance Committee 

include: 

“to agree human resources matters relating to the Local Government Pension 
Scheme. These include changes to the scheme requiring local decisions; 
responding to consultations for scheme amendments; applying discretionary 
termination payments to staff, in cases of early retirement on efficiency grounds; 
and amending or implementing new council policies on pensions (e.g. 
discretionary payments policy)” 

17. Therefore, through this paper, we ask the committee to review and approve the 
amended policy and policy statements for each council. 

Page 12

Agenda Item 6



 

 

 

 

Pension Scheme Policy 

South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



 
 

Pension Scheme Policy 

 

 

  

Page 1 | 18 

 

Change Record 

Change Record 

Policy Title Pension Scheme Policy 

Version Number 6 June 2022 

Owner(s) Strategic HR Team 

Author(s) Strategic HR Team 

Change details  

Approved by Strategic HR Team, UNISON & SMT 

Approved date  

Effective date  

Renewal date  

 

 

Page 14

Agenda Item 6



 
 

Pension Scheme Policy 

 

 

  

Page 2 | 18 

 

Table of Contents 

Change Record ......................................................................................................................................................1 

1 Introduction ..................................................................................................................................................4 

1.1 Purpose .................................................................................................................................................4 

1.2 Scope ....................................................................................................................................................4 

1.3 Contractual status ................................................................................................................................4 

1.4 Relevant legislation ..............................................................................................................................4 

1.5 Alternative formats ..............................................................................................................................4 

2 Policy – Introduction to the scheme ............................................................................................................5 

2.1 Introduction to the scheme ..................................................................................................................5 

2.2 This policy covers the following ...........................................................................................................5 

2.3 Eligibility to join the scheme and opting-out .......................................................................................6 

2.4 Transferring from previous pension funds ...........................................................................................7 

2.5 Contribution rates and how they are calculated ..................................................................................7 

2.6 Tax relief ...............................................................................................................................................9 

2.7 How your pension is worked out ..........................................................................................................9 

2.8 When you can start drawing your pension ....................................................................................... 10 

2.9 Redundancy and efficiency retirement ............................................................................................. 10 

2.10 Ill health retirement .......................................................................................................................... 11 

2.11 Flexible retirement ............................................................................................................................ 12 

2.12 Contributions while on child related leave........................................................................................ 12 

2.13 Contributions while on unpaid leave or other absences ................................................................... 13 

2.14 Discretionary payments ..................................................................................................................... 13 

2.15 Life cover ........................................................................................................................................... 14 

2.16 Rules for benefits prior to April 2014 ................................................................................................ 14 

2.17 Additional payments to your pension fund (ARCs and AVCs) ........................................................... 15 

2.18 Annual Pension Benefit Statements .................................................................................................. 15 

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



 
 

Pension Scheme Policy 

 

 

  

Page 3 | 18 

 

APPENDIX 1 – EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTION RATES ............................................................................................. 17 

 

Page 16

Agenda Item 6



 
 

Pension Scheme Policy 

 

 

  

Page 4 | 18 

 

1 Introduction 

1.1 Purpose 

Our Pension Scheme Policy outlines the councils’ approach to the provision of a pension scheme for 

employees of the council. 

1.2 Scope 

This policy applies to all permanent and temporary employees of the councils, excluding contractors/agency 

workers, who are the employees of third parties. 

The councils reserve the right to revise, withdraw or replace policies at any time and to introduce new 

policies from time to time to reflect the changing needs of the organisations.  

This policy document supersedes any previously existing or alternative policies, agreements or arrangements 

relating to the pension scheme at the councils. 

1.3 Contractual status 

This policy does form part of your contract of employment.  The councils are entitled to introduce minor and 

non-fundamental changes to this policy by notifying you of these changes in writing. The council will consult 

all employees on any major changes to the policy. 

1.4 Relevant legislation 

For further information regarding this pension policy, you may wish to refer to the following regulatory 

bodies: 

 the pension services team at Oxfordshire County Council – phone 03300 241 359   

 Oxfordshire County Council’s website  www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/pensions   

 the national LGPS website www.lgpsmember.org  

 www.pru.co.uk for information on Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVCs)  

 www.hmrc.gov.uk for information on the tax implications of pension schemes. 

 

1.5 Alternative formats 

Please do not hesitate to contact a member of the Strategic HR Team if you would like this policy in an 

alternative format.  Email: hradminandpayroll@southandvale.gov.uk. 

 

Page 17

Agenda Item 6

http://www.lgpsmember.org/
http://www.pru.co.uk/
http://www.hmrc.gov.uk/
mailto:hradminandpayroll@southandvale.gov.uk


 
 

Pension Scheme Policy 

 

 

  

Page 5 | 18 

 

2 Policy – Introduction to the scheme 

2.1 Introduction to the scheme 
 

The councils offer the local government pension scheme (LGPS) to all employees. This is a contributory 

scheme which means that you as an individual will contribute some of your monthly salary towards your 

pension fund, and the council as your employer also makes a contribution.  The combined contributions 

make this a particularly generous scheme and an important benefit for you as an employee.    

 

Membership of the scheme is voluntary although you will generally be deemed a member on joining the 

councils and are encouraged to remain in the scheme as this will help you have a sufficient income once you 

have retired from work.  The scheme also includes death-in-service cover which enables you to nominate 

someone (or more than one person) to receive a lump sum in the unlikely event of your death while you are 

employed by the council.  

 

The pension scheme is administered on the councils’ behalf by Oxfordshire County Council (OCC).  This policy 

provides a framework to the scheme although for further information you should read the information 

published by OCC’s pension services on their website www.oxfordshire.gov.uk .  

 

You will probably be reading this policy as a current member of the pension scheme although it is also 

intended to provide information if you are thinking of joining the scheme, or if you were formerly paying into 

the scheme (possibly a former employee who no longer works for a council).  The information provided 

generally applies to the current scheme although there have been changes to the regulations (most 

significantly in April 2014 and April 2008) which may mean that there are variations to the scheme rules 

between current and former members.  These previous regulations are noted where applicable.   

2.2 This policy covers the following 

 

 Eligibility to join the scheme and opting out    

 Transferring from previous pension funds 

 Contribution rates and how they are calculated   

 Tax relief  

 How your pension is worked out  

 When you can start drawing your pension   

 Redundancy and efficiency retirement  

 Ill-health retirement  

 Flexible retirement  

 Contributions while on child related leave  

 Contributions while on unpaid leave or other absences  

Page 18

Agenda Item 6

http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/


 
 

Pension Scheme Policy 

 

 

  

Page 6 | 18 

 

 Life cover   

 Death-in-service benefit 

 Rules for benefits prior to April 2014  

 Additional payments to your pension fund (ARCs and AVCs) 

 

2.3 Eligibility to join the scheme and opting-out 

 

You may join the LGPS if you are aged between 16 and 75 and have a contract direct with the councils (i.e. 

not including people working at the councils on a self-employed basis or through an agency).  If you have a 

permanent contract or a temporary contract of at least three months, you will be brought into the LGPS 

automatically from your first day of employment.  This is known as auto-enrolment and will also apply if you 

work for the councils regularly on a casual basis and your income averages more than £833 per month.  The 

Strategic HR team will advise you if you do become eligible for auto-enrolment. 

 

If you have a contract of less than three months or you are a casual worker with income below the threshold 

you may still join the pension scheme but will not be auto-enrolled.  It is possible that you will subsequently 

be auto-enrolled, for example by having a contract extension which takes you beyond three months’ 

employment or if you are a casual worker who begins to earn above the threshold.  If you have a contract of 

less than three months which is then extended beyond this period and are consequently auto-enrolled you 

will have the option of back-paying your pension contributions for the previous three months, with the 

councils also adding the employer contributions.  You are not able to back-pay pension contributions except 

in this circumstance.  If you voluntarily join the scheme having initially opted-out, or become auto-enrolled 

as a casual worker, you will not be able to back-date contributions. 

 

If you are auto-enrolled into the scheme and do not wish to remain a member you may complete an opt-out 

form to leave.  This form can be found on the OCC website and needs to be returned to the Strategic HR 

team (at South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse).  You are not permitted to complete and return an opt-

out form until after you have commenced employment. 

 

If you do complete an opt-out form this will be valid until 1 February 2023, at which point you would need to 

complete another form if you wish to remain out of the scheme. The auto enrolment process is undertaken 

on a three year cycle. The Strategic HR team will advise you if this is the case.  Each subsequent opt-out form 

you complete will have a validity of three years.  If you have opted out, you can change your mind and opt-in 

at any point in your employment – you do not have to wait until the end of the three year period.  Please 

note that you will not be able to back-date contributions from the date you opt-in. 

 

If you opt out of the pension scheme you may or may not have your first month’s pension contribution taken 

from your pay.  This will depend on when the Strategic HR team receives your opt-out form taking into 

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



 
 

Pension Scheme Policy 

 

 

  

Page 7 | 18 

 

account the requirement to finalise payroll details by a particular deadline each month.  If you have missed 

the deadline, your contribution will be refunded the following month. 

 

To obtain a full refund in your monthly pay of any LGPS contributions taken in your monthly salary you will 

need to complete an opt-out form within three months of commencing your employment.  If you opt-out 

from three months onwards, but before two years membership, you may claim a refund through the pension 

fund and would need to contact OCC to arrange this, subject to certain conditions.  For example, you may 

not be able to obtain a refund if you have previously had a local government pension.  If you opt-out after 

two years, you will not be able to claim a monetary refund but your pension membership will be held in the 

scheme as a deferred benefit i.e. it will be frozen and will be paid to you in the form of a pension when you 

retire. 

 

Auto-enrolment was implemented at South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse on 1 February 2014.  Prior 

to this date employees were required to opt-into the scheme rather than opt-out.   

2.4 Transferring from previous pension funds 

 

You have the option of transferring any previous private pension fund into the LGPS scheme. The pensions’ 

team at OCC will be able to advise you of the transfer value of your previous pension.  You have one year 

from when you first join the South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse scheme to make this transfer.  You 

will not be able to transfer funds after this period. 

 

If you have re-joined local government, any previous LGPS pension contributions will usually be 

automatically be transferred into your new scheme, although you have a year to notify the pensions’ team at 

OCC if you wish to keep the two schemes separate.  

2.5 Contribution rates and how they are calculated 

 

How much you contribute to your pension fund will vary according to your salary.  The pension contribution 

rates for employees are shown in Appendix 1 of this policy and also available to view on Jarvis.  However, 

you should remember that as your employer, the councils will also be paying into your fund and will be 

contributing a higher percentage than you, making the pension scheme a particularly valuable benefit.  The 

councils’ contribution is currently set for three years until 31 March 2023 and is currently over 16 per cent of 

your salary.   

 

The salary that determines your contribution rate is your basic annual pay (your actual pay if you are part 

time, not your full time equivalent salary) plus supplementary payments such as overtime, standby 

payments, first aid payments and honorariums.  Some other benefits are also classed as pensionable, for 

example the amount you contribute in a salary sacrifice scheme towards child-care vouchers or a bike loan 

Page 20

Agenda Item 6



 
 

Pension Scheme Policy 

 

 

  

Page 8 | 18 

 

will be a pensionable figure.  Your contribution rate could therefore vary from year to year depending on 

your salary and supplementary payments.   

 

There are a number of payments that are not pensionable.  These include expenses, payment for loss of 

holidays (usually if you are leaving and have not used all your pro-rated annual leave), any payment in lieu of 

notice, any salary sacrifice schemes relating to cars or a redundancy payment.  

 

Your contribution rate will be system reviewed automatically on a monthly basis based on your monthly 

earnings to ensure that you are contributing the correct amount.   

 

If your basic annual salary increases during the year, because you move to a higher grade or higher 

incremental spinal column point within your grade, this will increase your pension contribution rate if it 

takes you into a higher pension band in the current year.    

 

If you do not think that you are in the correct pension band, please contact the Strategic HR team.  If your HR 

Business Advisor or the HR Manager are unable to resolve your query you may appeal in writing to the Head 

of Service responsible for HR (an email is acceptable).   

 

If you have more than one job at the councils at the same time, you will have separate pension records for 

each job.  This is regardless of whether you are employed by South Oxfordshire for one job and Vale of 

White Horse for the other, or whether both jobs are with the same employer. The contribution rate for each 

job will be assessed separately depending on how much you earn, therefore you could be paying a higher 

contribution rate in one job than the other.  If one job finishes, you should talk to the Pensions team at OCC 

to get information about whether you can merge both records into one or will need to keep them separate.  

 

Instead of the standard contribution rates, you may also elect to pay half of your contribution rate.  If you 

take up this 50/50 option you will build up only half the standard pension value during this period as your 

contributions levels will be halved, however the councils’ contributions will remain at the full contribution 

level, therefore you should consider your long term interests carefully before opting for it.  This is viewed as 

a temporary arrangement and you will be moved back to full payment after a maximum period of three 

years in line with the councils’ auto-enrolment dates as outlined in 2.3 above.  There is not a limit on the 

amount of times you can move between full contributions and 50/50 contributions.  If you take up the 50/50 

option you will still retain the full death-in-service benefits.  

 

Please note that the calculation of contribution rates was revised from 1 April 2014.  Prior to this date, 

additional payments such as overtime and standby were not included as pensionable pay, this was based 

purely on your basic annual pay.  The earnings threshold for each contribution band also changed at this 

time, changing from seven to nine bands.  Therefore, please be aware that historical calculations will differ 

from the current methods.  The 50/50 option was also introduced from 1 April 2014 and was not available 

before this date.     

Page 21

Agenda Item 6



 
 

Pension Scheme Policy 

 

 

  

Page 9 | 18 

 

2.6 Tax relief 

 

As a member of the LGPS, your contributions will attract tax relief at the time they are deducted from your 

pay.  This means that your salary will have your pension contributions deducted before your tax (but not 

national insurance) is deducted.  You only pay tax on what is left so whether you pay tax at a basic or higher 

rate you get the full relief straight away. 

 

There is an annual allowance and a lifetime allowance which have tax implications.  You may pay as much as 

you wish into your pension but if your annual contribution exceeds £40,000 you will not qualify for tax relief 

on the amount you contribute above this figure.  Similarly, if your lifetime contributions exceed £1,073,100 

million you will not receive tax relief on any amount you pay in above this.  Normally, this will only affect you 

if you are at a senior level and have paid into the scheme for most of your working years.  

2.7 How your pension is worked out 

 

The LGPS is a defined benefits scheme.  This means that the amount you pay in is guaranteed to produce a 

particular pension pot, unlike a money purchase scheme normally provided by private sector employers 

where the final amount in your pension pot is subject to how the investments made by the pension fund 

performed. 

 

Under the current LGPS scheme from April 2014, you will build up your pension fund each year at the rate of 

1/49th of the amount of pensionable pay you received in that year (or half this rate if you elected to take up 

the 50/50 option).  This figure is subsequently revalued at the end of each year to take into account changes 

to the cost of living.  For example, if your pensionable earnings are £24,500, you will accrue a benefit of £500 

per year (£24,500 / 49).  This could potentially be increased to £515 at the end of the year if it was assumed 

that the cost of living had increased by three per cent.  If you retire at your normal retirement age, you 

would therefore receive £515 per annum as a pension payment (plus future cost of living increases) x years 

membership.  This figure would then be added to after each year of employment.  If you leave council 

employment your pension account will be frozen but will still be subject to cost of living increases.  This type 

of scheme is called a career average scheme. 

 

On your retirement, as an alternative to taking the full amount in your pension fund as a pension, you may 

exchange part of it for a tax free lump sum when you first take your pension benefits. 

 

If you were a member of the pension scheme before 1 April 2014, different rules applied for working out 

your pension. 

 

For any pension scheme membership you have from 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2014 inclusive you will receive 

a pension of 1/60th of your final pay per year of service and you have the option of exchanging some of your 

pension for a tax free lump sum.  Your final salary may be the highest salary of your last three years of 

Page 22

Agenda Item 6



 
 

Pension Scheme Policy 

 

 

  

Page 10 | 18 

 

employment.  If you had an enforced drop in salary in the final ten years of your employment (for example a 

drop in grade), you can choose your final pay to be the average pensionable pay for any three consecutive 

years ending 31 March in the last 13 years. 

 

For any pension scheme membership you have prior to 1 April 2008, you will receive a pension of 1/80th of 

your final pay per year of service plus an automatic tax free lump sum of three times your pension. 

 

The OCC website https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/business/oxfordshire-pension-fund/pension-scheme-

members/active-members/my-oxfordshire-pension contains more details of how your pension is calculated 

and the options available to you.   

2.8 When you can start drawing your pension 

 

Your normal retirement age in the LGPS, is the same as your state pension age (SPA) subject to a minimum 

age of 66.  You may choose to retire and start drawing your pension anytime between the ages of 57 (from 

October 2022) and 75, usually providing you have been in the scheme for two years.  Your normal retirement 

age is simply the date you can retire and take the pension you have built up in full. 

 

If you choose to take your pension before your normal retirement age it will be reduced as it is being paid 

earlier.  The LGPS website www.lgpsmember.org includes information showing how much any reduction 

would be.  The councils will not make up this reduction unless this is due to an exceptional circumstance 

listed below such as ill-health.  If you request to take your pension early due to compassionate grounds this 

will be considered by the Head of Paid Services (Chief Executive) in conjunction with members of SMT, but 

will not normally be agreed unless it is on the basis of ill health retirement.    

 

If you choose to begin drawing your pension after your normal retirement age it will be increased as it is 

being paid later.  You should give the pension services team at OCC three months notice if you wish to draw 

your pension at a time which is not your normal retirement age.   

 

You should ensure you have looked at both the immediate and longer term financial implications before you 

make a final decision of when to draw your pension and we strongly advise you to take independent 

financial advice. 

2.9 Redundancy and efficiency retirement 

 

If you have at least two years membership of the LGPS and leave the council due to redundancy or to 

improve the efficiency of the service and are aged 57 from October 2022 and above but below your normal 

retirement age, you will receive your pension benefits immediately and without reduction for retirement 

before your normal retirement age. 

 

Page 23

Agenda Item 6

https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/business/oxfordshire-pension-fund/pension-scheme-members/active-members/my-oxfordshire-pension
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/business/oxfordshire-pension-fund/pension-scheme-members/active-members/my-oxfordshire-pension
http://www.lgpsmember.org/


 
 

Pension Scheme Policy 

 

 

  

Page 11 | 18 

 

If you leave to improve the efficiency of the service this means that the councils will agree to you receiving 

your pension even if it is not a redundancy situation.  This could be because there would be a cost saving for 

the councils if you leave or potentially due to ill-health that doesn’t fall into the category of ill-health 

retirement (see below).  The receipt of pension payments due to redundancy or efficiency excludes 

additional pension bought through Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVCs).  Any decision to confirm 

redundancy or a departure due to efficiency will be taken by the Head of Paid Services (Chief Executive). 

 

If you were to leave the council due to redundancy you will receive a redundancy payment at a rate agreed 

through a collective agreement with the union recognised by the councils, UNISON.  This is an enhancement 

of statutory redundancy pay and applies whether you were to leave due to compulsory or voluntary 

redundancy.  You will receive redundancy pay regardless of whether you are a member of the pension 

scheme or not. 

2.10 Ill health retirement 

 

If you are unable to continue working and therefore need to leave your employment due to ongoing ill-

health you may be able to take ill-health retirement subject to meeting a number of requirements.  This 

means you would be able to receive your pension immediately without a reduction to it. 

 

You may request ill-health retirement or the councils may suggest it as an option if you appear unable to 

work in the longer term.  To be awarded ill-health retirement you need to have at least two years’ 

membership in the LGPS.  You would need to be assessed by an independent registered medical practitioner 

(IRMP) who is registered with the General Medical Council and who is a recognised occupational health 

practitioner.  This will normally be arranged through the councils’ occupational health provider.  The IRMP 

will produce a report for you and for the councils in which they will offer an opinion on whether you meet 

the ill-health retirement criteria set out in the regulations.  This report will be forwarded to the South and 

Vale Strategic HR team who will forward it with any other relevant information to the councils’ Head of Paid 

Service/Joint Audit & Governance Committee who will take the final decision on whether ill-health 

retirement will be awarded and which level, or tier, of benefit will apply to you. 

 

There are three tiers of ill-health retirement which may be awarded.  Tiers one is awarded if you are unlikely 

to be capable of employment before your normal pensionable age and is based on the pension built up at 

the date of leaving plus pension you would have built up until your normal pension age. Tier two is awarded 

if you are unlikely to be able to work within 3 years of leaving but able to undertake some employment 

before your normal pension age, pension would be based on pension built up to date of leaving plus 25% of 

the pension you would have build up to normal pension age.  Tier three works on the basis that you may be 

able to return to employment in the longer term and therefore allows for a review of your health and your 

receipt of your pension after 18 months.  Details are available on the OCC website. 

 

Ill-health early retirement benefits cannot be awarded if you have already resigned from work. 

Page 24

Agenda Item 6



 
 

Pension Scheme Policy 

 

 

  

Page 12 | 18 

 

 

If you are a former employee who wishes to take ill-health retirement in relation to your deferred benefit, 

the retirement options will be based on the date you stopped contributing to the pension scheme.  You may 

find that the options may be different as the rules may have changed since the date you finished paying into 

the scheme. Applications for former employees can be considered on a case by case basis by the Head of 

Paid Service (Chief Executive).  

2.11 Flexible retirement 

 

Please note there is no entitlement to flexible retirement however if you are aged between 57 (from 

October 2022) and 75 you may request flexible retirement under the LGPS regulations. This involves drawing 

your pension benefits while continuing to work, through having reduced your hours of work and / or 

accepted a lower paid job within the councils.  With flexible retirement, your benefits may be reduced 

(because you are taking your pension before your normal retirement age) or unreduced because you have 

protection of your pension due to pre 2014 regulations. 

 

If you take flexible retirement with reduced benefits, your manager will need to agree any change in hours.  

The LGPS website gives details of the reduction to your benefits that would apply if you took flexible 

retirement with reduced benefits. 

 

If you put in a flexible retirement request with unreduced benefits it will need to be agreed by SMT, or by a 

member of SMT on its behalf.  The decision is discretionary and any flexible retirement arrangements will 

need to include the following: 

 

 your manager and head of service will need to confirm that the change in hours and / or grade 

can be accommodated  

 the arrangement is expected to continue for a minimum of a year and a maximum period of 2 

years (subject to review again) 

 your basic annual pay will have to reduce by at least 20 per cent. 

 Final decision is considered by the People & Culture Manager, Head of Corporate Services, Head 

of Finance and Head of Paid Services (Chief Executive). 

 

Even if these factors are met, the Head of Paid Service (Chief Executive) may still decline your request due to 

cost to the councils or other factors.  Each case will be considered on its own merits and the employee will 

be advised of the outcome, the council reserve the right to refuse applications for flexible retirement.  

2.12 Contributions while on child related leave 

 

If you are on maternity leave or are taking some other form of child related leave such as paternity leave or 

adoption leave, your pay will be pensionable.  If you are on maternity leave you will pay contributions (and 

Page 25

Agenda Item 6



 
 

Pension Scheme Policy 

 

 

  

Page 13 | 18 

 

accrue pension) on the specific amount of pay that you receive while you are on leave, not your normal 

salary while you are at work.  However, the contribution rate for both you and the councils will be based on 

your assumed pensionable pay.  In other words, the percentage you contribute will be based on your salary 

at work (based on an average of your last three month’s salary before your child related leave began if your 

salary is variable).  For example, if your contribution rate is 6.5 per cent when you are working, you will also 

contribute 6.5 per cent of your maternity pay. 

 

For any period of unpaid maternity or other child related leave you will be able to buy back your lost 

pension.  The amount you pay will be in line with guidance from the Government Actuary’s Department 

(GAD), a body that provides advice to the government on the public sector.  Further information on the cost 

to you can be found on the LGPS website, www.lgpsmember.org .  If you confirm you will buy back your 

pension within 30 days of returning to work, the councils will also contribute, with the split being you paying 

one third and the councils paying two thirds of the cost.  This is called a Shared Cost Additional Pension 

Contribution.  You may still buy back your pension after 30 days but you would then need to pay the whole 

cost without the council contributing.  This is termed an Additional Pension Contribution (APC).  

2.13 Contributions while on unpaid leave or other absences 

 

If you take unpaid leave such as a sabbatical you will have the option to buy back lost pension as with 

maternity leave.  You will need to pay an Additional Pension Contribution (APC) which will be calculated in 

accordance with guidance from GAD.  Further information on the cost to you can be found on the LGPS 

website, www.lgpsmember.org .  If you confirm you will buy back your pension within 30 days of returning 

to work, the councils will also contribute, with the split being you paying one third and the councils paying 

two thirds of the cost.  You may still buy back your pension after 30 days but you would then need to pay the 

whole cost.  This is referred to as a Shared Cost Additional Pension Contribution (SCAPC).    

 

If your absence is due to strike action, the councils will not contribute to your pension cost, although you 

may still buy back your lost pension.   

 

If you are on reserve forces leave any actual pay paid to you by the councils is not pensionable although the 

councils and the Ministry of Defence are likely to make separate contributions to your pension fund.  

2.14 Discretionary payments 

 

The council is required to consider how to exercise their discretion and in respect of some (but not all) of 

these discretionary provisions to have a written policy on how they will apply their discretion. For example 

the council will state whether they will: 

 

 Allow flexible retirement 

 Award or pay towards the cost of additional pension 

Page 26

Agenda Item 6

http://www.lgpsmember.org/
http://www.lgpsmember.org/


 
 

Pension Scheme Policy 

 

 

  

Page 14 | 18 

 

 Waive any reduction to your pension if it is paid early (except for ill health, redundancy and 

business efficiency retirements where the council is obliged to meet the cost of paying your 

pension 

 Grant early payment of deferred benefits and whether the council will waive any reductions 

 

In some cases, councils can increase an employee’s pension fund if they are an active member of the 

pension scheme by awarding additional years or making an additional payment into their fund.  South 

Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse will not add to your membership or pension fund unless required to by 

the LGPS regulations, however the circumstances in which the council will exercise their discretion is 

contained within the Discretionary Pension Policy.   

 

2.15 Life cover 

 

If you are a pension scheme member you are also eligible for life cover.  If you were to die while you are an 

employee of the councils and are aged under 75 at the time of death, your nominated dependent will 

receive a lump sum of three times your salary, tax free.  Your spouse or civil partner, or subject to certain 

conditions your co-habiting partner, will also receive a survivor’s pension.  For more details, please see the 

OCC website. 

 

2.16 Rules for benefits prior to April 2014 

 

There were various changes to the LGPS scheme from April 2014.  If you built up benefits prior to this date 

they will be calculated using the regulations in place at the point you contributed to the scheme prior to 

April 2014.  Some of these differences are listed below:  

 

 Your accrued pension will be based on your final salary (at the point you left the councils or at 31 

March 2014 if you are still employed) rather than a career average salary.   

 Certificates of protection giving you the option to select your final salary from your final three 

years employment (or across ten years if you had an enforced salary reduction) remain in place. 

 Your normal pension age is likely to be 66 rather than the state retirement age.  

 The rule of 85 will still apply if you were a member of the LGPS on 30 September 2006.  This 

applies if your age in years and your length of LGPS membership add up to 85 or more (for 

example if you are 55 with 30 years membership).  The rule protects some or all of your benefits 

and remains applicable if you voluntarily draw your pension between age 60 and 65.  The 

councils will not pay any costs if you are voluntarily ending employment using the rule of 85 if 

you are aged 57 (from October 2022) – 59.    

 Your pension will be based on 1/60th of your final salary rather than 1/49th of your career 

average salary 

Page 27

Agenda Item 6



 
 

Pension Scheme Policy 

 

 

  

Page 15 | 18 

 

 Additional Pension Contribution (APC) and Additional Voluntary Contribution (AVC) contracts in 

force will continue on the terms of the contract when they were originally taken out (see the 

following information on APCs and AVCs).   

 If you leave the LGPS and were to later rejoin, certain regulations from your earlier membership 

will remain in place.  These will vary depending on whether the break is more or fewer than five 

years.  

 

For more information on these and other differences, please see the LGPS and OCC websites or call the OCC 

pensions team Tel  0330 0241359.  

2.17 Additional payments to your pension fund (ARCs and AVCs) 
 

You may make Additional Regular Contributions (ARCs) to your pension fund.  These will be an additional 

one-off payment, or ongoing payments, to your fund, to purchase additional pension.  You may make a one 

off contribution or regular payments (normally paid monthly).  The councils will not contribute to the cost of 

your ARCs.   

 

You may also make Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVCs).  These are not paid into your LGPS fund but 

are instead made to an additional pension plan to run alongside the LGPS.  The councils’ AVC provider is 

Prudential and you can contact them directly or see their website (www.pru.co.uk) for more information.  As 

with ARCs, the councils will not contribute to the cost of your AVCs 

2.18 Annual Pension Benefit Statements 

 

You will also receive an annual personal benefit statement each year which provides a summary of the 

estimated value of your pension at 31st March which is the end of the scheme year. From this information 

you are required to check Pension Services hold the correct information about you and your employment at 

31 March each year, namely employer, payroll number, section of scheme you are in at 31st March (LGPS 

main section or 50/50 section). The next paragraph on the benefit statement provides details of your 

benefits as if at 31 March, based on benefits built up to 31 March 2014 and any benefits building up since 1 

April 2014. 

 

You will receive a reduced pension if you leave and choose to take your benefits after age 57 (from October 

2022) but before your normal pension age. Please refer to for details. 

https://www.lgpsmember.org/more/reductions.php.php 

 

Depending on how long you have been in the scheme, there may be several sets of figures contained within 

the section “Summary of total benefits”, the standard benefit option shows current value of current pension 

for life as well as any one-off lump sum. Lump sum features automatically if you have membership before 1 

April 2008. Also shown is the maximum lump sum option which shows you the option you may have at 

Page 28

Agenda Item 6

http://www.pru.co.uk/
https://www.lgpsmember.org/more/reductions.php.php


 
 

Pension Scheme Policy 

 

 

  

Page 16 | 18 

 

retirement to convert a standard benefit option into a smaller pension for life but with a larger one-off lump 

sum. 

 

The maximum lump sum option, subject to HMRC limits, is worked out by increasing your lump sum by £12 

for each £1 you give up from your annual pension. The maximum lump sum you receive cannot be more 

than a quarter of the overall value of all your pension benefits, including any in-house additional voluntary 

contributions (AVC). 

 

Death in service lump sum -you can nominate who ever you wish to receive a death grant, please note, your 

nomination is an expression of wish, the Pension Fund will take your wishes into account, but payment is 

made at the Fund’s discretion. 

 

Section 4 – Career average revalued earnings pension benefits as at 31 March (payable from normal pension 

date). These figures denote estimated values at the end of the scheme year if you could leave and take 

unreduced benefits at that date. 

 

Version 5 draft: March 2022 

Page 29

Agenda Item 6



 
 

Pension Scheme Policy 

 

 

  

Page 17 | 18 

 

APPENDIX 1 – EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTION RATES 2022-23 

The rates you will contribute to your pension as an employee vary according to your salary and are shown in 

the table below:  

 

Band Annual pensionable pay 

range per employment 

Contribution rate for that 

employment 

50/50 section 

contribution rates 

for that 

employment 

1 Up to £15,000 5.5% 2.75% 

2 £15,001 to £23,600 5.8% 2.90% 

3 £23,601 to £38,300 6.5% 3.25% 

4 £38,301 to £48,500 6.8% 3.40% 

5 £48,501 to £67,900 8.5% 4.25% 

6 £67,901 to £96,200 9.9% 4.95% 

7 £96,201 to £113,400 10.5% 5.25% 

8 £113,401 to £170,100 11.4% 5.7% 

9 £170,001 or more 12.5% 6.25% 

 

Your contribution rate depends on how much you are paid. For example if you work full-time at a pay rate of 

£16,000, you would pay a contribution of 5.8%.  Your contribution band is based on your actual annual 

pensionable pay, including overtime and other pensionable payments.  

If you work part time, your contribution rate is also based on your actual pay for your job, and you pay 

contributions on the pay you actually earn, including any additional hours worked and paid.  For example, if 

you work half-time (18.5 hours per week compared with a full time working week of 37 hours) and your 

actual pay is £10,000 a year (with a full time salary of £20,000), you will pay a contribution rate of 5.5%. 

 

Page 30

Agenda Item 6



 
 

Pension Scheme Policy 

 

 

  

Page 18 | 18 

 

 

Page 31

Agenda Item 6



Version: August 2021           1 

 

    

Summary for fund employers in the Oxfordshire Fund of items to include in Policy statement   

Introduction 

It is a statutory requirement to prepare, consult and publish your policy statement, which promotes open administration, helps build awareness of 
pension provisions and ensures correct pension benefit payments. All employers should: 

 prepare and publish written policy statements under LGPS Regulations, Compensation Regulations and Injury Allowance Regulations.   

 send a copy to Oxfordshire Pension Fund.  

 set out and implement a review process 
  

Contents  

How to use this policy summary 
 
Summary of discretions affecting Active members and Leavers on and after 2 April 2014 
 
Other mandatory provisions to be included in a policy, under different regulations and which can apply to active employees regardless of LGPS 
membership 
 
Summary of discretions to be exercised on and after 1 April 2014 (as at 14 May 2018) in relation to members (excluding councillor members) 
who ceased active membership between 1 April 2008 and 31 March 2014 
 
Summary of discretions to be exercised on and after 1 April 2014 (for requests made from 14 May 2018) in relation to members (including 
councillor members) who ceased active membership between 1 April 1998 and 31 March 2008  
 
Summary of discretions to be exercised on and after 1 April 2014 (as at 14 May 2018) in relation to members (excluding councillor members) 
who ceased active membership before 1 April 1998  
 
2000 Discretionary Regulations  

 

Help for Parish Councils  

P
age 32

A
genda Item

 6



Version: August 2021           2 

How to use this policy summary: 

1. Where XXX appears in the document, complete to show the formal name of your employer /authority 
 

2. Delete or add wording in the final column, where applicable, to indicate the decision that you have made 
 

3. Sign the document, before sending to pension.employers@oxfordshire.gov.uk      
 

4. Required / mandatory areas are shown in shaded boxes. These must be included in published statements. 
 

5. Other areas where the employer can use discretion, and which are the most frequently applied are shown too. It is recommended you include 
these in your statements, to help ensure all parties are clear on employer intention and process. 
 

6. The summary shows the required and the frequently used ‘other’ areas to include in a statement of discretionary policies from May 2021. For 
complete listing contact Pension Services    
   

7. Check you apply the parts appropriate to your employer status in the LGPS (admitted, designated, etc)  
 

8. Simplified suggestions have been provided however all employers should prepare their policy being aware of the full requirements and 
precautions – the full list of discretionary policies can be found https://lgpsregs.org/resources/guidesetc.php 

 
 

 
 
 
 
Policy statement prepared and submitted by           Marcia Slater       
 
Date     6 May 2022 
 
To be reviewed ………./……../ …….. 
  

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 6

mailto:pension.employers@oxfordshire.gov.uk
https://lgpsregs.org/resources/guidesetc.php


Version: August 2021           3 

 1: Summary of discretions affecting Active members and Leavers on and after 2 April 2014 

An employer has discretion 
to exercise in these areas  

Regulation 
reference  

Background and points to consider  
(shaded sections are mandatory) 

Simplified suggestions 

Employer to determine who 
will join the scheme (Admitted 
and Designated Bodies)  

2013 LGPS 
regulation 2  

Your committee minutes/ admission agreement must 
specify who will be eligible to join the scheme - either 
by the name, or by type of employment and from 
which date.  

Ensure employee has details including scheme brief 
guide and  www.lgpsmember.org link     

Capita contract commenced on 1 August 2016, 
previous contract was awarded on 31 July 2006 
when the financial services contract was 
outsourced to Capita. 
 
Vinci contract which included Acadis and Indigo 
commenced on 1 August 2016. 
Indigo contract has been subsequently novated to 
SABA from 1 April 2018. 
 
 

  NB Scheduled Bodies including county, district 
councils, FE colleges, academies, university must 
follow LGPS regulatory admission not discretionary, 
however new joiners should be given link to the 
scheme brief guide and advised how their 
contribution rate is assessed    

 

Employer to determine 
member contribution band and 
terms of review. This decides 
the member contribution rate.   

 

2013 LGPS 
regulations 
9/10  

When joining and at every April (the start of the fund 
year) allocate the contribution band determined by 
the employee’s expected annual actual pay – 
pensionable pay.   

Your policy should show if the allocation would 
change mid-year following a material change in pay. 
Inform member of your process      

Ideally members contract should specify what other 
pay and benefits to be ‘pensionable’ (20)(1)(a)    

South Oxfordshire District Council will review 
employee contribution band every April and will 
generally review monthly following a material 
change to pay. 

 

Will employer grant extra 
annual pension? 

2013 LGPS 
regulation 31  

Employer can pay the fund to increase the member’s 
pension up to an additional £7,316 a year (2021 
rate). Grant possible to active member, or within 6 
months of someone leaving on redundancy or 
business efficiency. Full cost is with the employer  

South Oxfordshire District Council will not grant 
extra annual pension unless under exceptional 
compassionate grounds, which will be considered 
by the Senior Management Team. 

(See paragraph 34 in policy)  

P
age 34

A
genda Item

 6

http://www.lgpsmember.org/


Version: August 2021           4 

An employer has discretion 
to exercise in these areas  

Regulation 
reference  

Background and points to consider  
(shaded sections are mandatory) 

Simplified suggestions 

Will employer extend time 
limits for member to make 
decision on transfer of pension 
rights from an approved 
pension scheme?     

2013 LGPS 
regulation 
100(6)    

The member has 12 months from first joining LGPS 
in that employment to receive details, seek advice 
and make decision on transfer. There may have 
been reasons for delays out of the member’s control. 
Employer may want to seek advice on any potential 
financial cost from Pension Services before 
approving request to extend deadline    

South Oxfordshire District Council will not extend 
time limits for transfer decisions.  

See paragraph 13 in policy  

Will employer extend time limit 
for members to NOT link 
(aggregate) their LGPS 
memberships? 

2013 LGPS 
regulation 
22(7)+(8)       

A member joining after April 2014 who has previous 
LGPS membership can elect to keep pension 
records separate but this must be done within 12 
months of starting in that employment.  Without the 
written election pension records will be linked 
together. There may be reasons for delays out of the 
member’s control. 

South Oxfordshire District Council will not extend 
the time limits the member has to make an election 
to keep pension records separate   

See paragraph 14 in policy 

 

Will employer extend time limit 
for members to link 
(aggregate) their LGPS 
memberships? 

Amendment 
LGPS 
regulations 
2018 27 and 
TP 2014 
Regulations 
10  

Quite specific - for those joining scheme again after 
May 2018 but were in scheme during March/April 
2014 and have previous Deferred Benefit. The link 
will not be automatic, must have written election 
within 12 months, employer may allow a later 
election  

South Oxfordshire District Council will extend time 
limits for transfer decisions.   

See paragraph 14 in policy  

Will employer contribute to 
Shared Cost Additional 
Voluntary Contributions 
(SCAVC) ? 

2013 LGPS 
regulation 17   

Whether, how much and in what circumstances to 
contribute to the SCAVC arrangement    

(Recommend consult with Pension Services on any 
payroll / benefit implications before setting this up. )   

South Oxfordshire District Council will not 
contribute to SCAVC arrangement. (Provide 
details of circumstances if entering this 
arrangement)  

 

Will employer include regular 
lump sums when assessing 
value for Assumed 
Pensionable Pay (APP)? 

 
 
 
 
 

2013 LGPS 
regulation 21   

There are times when the pension value must be 
protected yet the member has no or reduced pay. 
Employers assess an assumed value, based on 
three months or twelve weeks of pay immediately 
before the reduction. If in the twelve months before 
the member would have ordinarily received a lump 
sum payment, consider if this should be added back 
to the APP assessment as a reasonable expectation     

South Oxfordshire District Council will when 
appropriate, add back the regular lump sum 
payment to provide the assumed pensionable pay 
figure for purposes.  

*when on reduced pay during child related leave  

*reserves forces leave  

*no or reduced pay during sickness or injury  

*retirement on tier 1 or tier 2  

P
age 35

A
genda Item

 6



Version: August 2021           5 

An employer has discretion 
to exercise in these areas  

Regulation 
reference  

Background and points to consider  
(shaded sections are mandatory) 

Simplified suggestions 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Check on www.LPGSregs.org  for more details on 
APP and when to use and report if you are unsure  

 

NB separate calculations are required if member 
dies in service or retires on ill health even if APP 
already assessed for monthly returns  

*death in service  

 

Consider stating in policy how checks will be made 
and how member and fund are informed. 

Will employer substitute a 
higher value of pensionable 
pay when assessing APP ?  

2018 
amendment 
regulations 7   

Introduced in 2018, but backdated to April 2014, an 
employer may substitute a higher pensionable pay if, 
in their opinion, the value assessed by APP is 
materially lower than member would ordinarily have 
received in the previous year .   Could occur during 
child related leave, reduced on no pay sickness etc  
and be used for ill health retirement on tier 1 or 2, 
death in service. Intention retains level of benefit       

South Oxfordshire District Council will in specific 
circumstances consider substituting a higher value 
of pay in place of APP   

(-in cases where an honorarium may have been 
paid for a considerable time period and that time 
period has lapsed in recent months) 

The decision will be made by the Head of Paid 
Service (Chief Executive) in consultation with 
wider senior management team. 

Consider stating in policy how checks will be made 
and how member and fund are informed.  

Employee/manager would submit a written 
application to Strategic HR, who would agree 
eligibility prior to submission to Head of paid 
Service/Joint Audit & Governance Committee. 

Will employer share the cost of 
purchasing additional pension 
(SCAPC) with a member? 

2013 LGPS 
regulation 
16(2) and (4)    

When an active member elects to buy additional 
pension by extra contributions, would the employer 
voluntarily contribute towards this? What 
circumstances might prompt the action?   

NB be careful not to confuse with restoring lost 
pension after approved absence when employer 
MUST share 2/3rds cost.   

South Oxfordshire District will not share the cost 
for a member’s purchase for additional pension.  

Will employer extend time limit 
for member to decide to 
restore lost pension by shared 
cost additional pension 
contributions (SCAPC) after a 
period of no pay (other than 

2013 LGPS 
regulation 
16(16)   

After a period of approved unpaid leave, a member 
has 30 days from return to work to receive 
information to enable election for (SCAPC) shared 
cost additional pension contribution, to restore lost 
pension.  

South Oxfordshire District Council will extend 
deadlines beyond 30 days of return to work when 
application shows good reason for the delay in 
decision.  

P
age 36

A
genda Item

 6

http://www.lpgsregs.org/


Version: August 2021           6 

An employer has discretion 
to exercise in these areas  

Regulation 
reference  

Background and points to consider  
(shaded sections are mandatory) 

Simplified suggestions 

due to sickness or paid child 
related leave.)  ? 

Employer must provide lost pay details and advise 
member of opportunity.  

Employer must share costs when election made 
within time limits.  

 

Increasing time limit would allow for any delays in 
administration process.   

Any extension must not exceed three months from 
return to work and decision will be made by Head 
of Corporate Services 

 

Ideally show process of application: 

Strategic HR will engage with employee to assist 
with the calculation for lost pay details, agree 
repayment terms, obtain OCC agreement and 
implement deduction within three months of 
employee returning to work.     

Will employer permit flexible 
retirement?  

2013 LGPS 
regulation 
30(6)   

For members aged at least 55, and with agreement 
of their employer, reduce hours or grade and 
releases pension, giving member choice on taking 
all, part or none of post 31 March 2008 benefits. 
Early payment may mean pension is reduced for the 
member,  

Employer can waive the reduction completely or in 
part, and this is wholly employer cost.  

Always seek guidance on costs from Pension 
Services. Some members may have protected rights 
to unreduced pension, which would increase 
employer costs.  

Member stays in fund in ongoing employment        

Employer has several parts to this discretion which 
should be included-    

South Oxfordshire District Council    

a) will consider applications for flexible retirement 
and subject to cost/ business case will agree 
flexible retirement arrangements (see paragraph 
46-48) 

If it considers a)   

then b) South Oxfordshire District Council will not 
waive any pension reductions and  

c) will not permit member to choose which part of 
their pension to draw (subject to employer cost/ 
business need)   

Will employer switch back on 
’85-year rule’ protections?   

2014 
Transitional 
Provisions 
regulations 
Sched 2   

Unlikely to apply when membership only starts from 
1 April 2014 with no linked previous membership. 
Intention enables employers to pay unreduced 
pension to those voluntarily retiring between 55 and 
60, who could have had 85-year rule protection   – 
cost falls all to employer.  

South Oxfordshire District Council has no pre 2014 
liabilities and this regulation will not apply.  (This 
section will be reviewed in the future/ we will not 
switch on this option should any employee bring 
earlier protected rights with them to this 
employment)   

When would employer waive 
actuarial reductions to benefits 
being drawn on early voluntary 
retirement?    

2013 LGPS 
regulation 
30(5)   

Can apply from active, from deferred status and from 
deferred tier 3 ill health retirees, between age 55 and 
normal pension age. Pensions taken early voluntarily 
will be reduced and employer can waive the 
reductions at their own cost.  

South Oxfordshire District Council will not  
consider applications to waive actuarial reduction 
for early voluntary retirement from active 
members, unless in exceptional circumstances 
and in accordance with LGPS regulations. Any 

P
age 37

A
genda Item

 6



Version: August 2021           7 

An employer has discretion 
to exercise in these areas  

Regulation 
reference  

Background and points to consider  
(shaded sections are mandatory) 

Simplified suggestions 

Employers should be clear in their policy on how this 
could apply and under which circumstances. For 
post 2014 membership there is no longer the 
requirement to satisfy compassionate grounds as a 
regulation requirement to release pension early.      

such decision will be made by the Head of Paid 
Services (Chief Executive) in conjunction with the 
Joint Audit & Governance Committee.  

South Oxfordshire District Council will not consider 
applications to waive actuarial reductions made by 
members with deferred pensions etc. ( As above) 

 
 
 
  

P
age 38

A
genda Item

 6



Version: August 2021           8 

2: Other mandatory provisions to be included in a policy, under different regulations and which can apply to active employees 
regardless of LGPS membership 

An employer has discretion 
to exercise in these areas  

Regulation 
reference 

Background and points to consider  
 (shaded sections are mandatory) 

Simplified suggestions 

Will employer make an injury 
award to compensate for loss 
of  
a) pay, or  
b) job, or   
c) death due to injury or 
disease sustained at work?      

Regulation 3-7 
of the Local 
Government 
(Discretionary 
Payments) 
(Injury 
Allowances) 
Regulations 
2011 
employers 
(LGPS 
employers),  

The requirement to have a policy is 14(1) of these 
regulations.  
Under what circumstances, for how much and for 
how long would an employee be compensated if in 
performing their duties a person sustains injury or 
disease leading to loss of pay, employment or 
death?  
Injury award could apply to all employees 
regardless of LGPS membership.   
Awards are not funded through the pension 
scheme, all costs rest with employer.   
 
 

South Oxfordshire District Council has set up an 
injury award scheme under these regulations- it’s 
referred to as employers liability insurance. 
 
If will   set out the terms of assessment and 
arrangements to apply.  
 
 
 

Will employer pay enhanced 
redundancy payments and /or 
compensation for loss of 
employment on redundancy 
etc. ?  

Local 
Government 
(Early 
Termination of 
Employment) 
(Discretionary 
Compensation) 
(England and 
Wales) 
Regulations 
2006 

Two decisions in this section available for 
employees   
!) in the event of a redundancy, and person week’s 
pay would be higher than the relevant statutory 
week’s pay –  which would you use to assess 
redundancy payment?  (Regulation 5)  
 
2) an employer can make a termination payment of 
up to 104 weeks pay to an LGPS member or 
someone eligible to be a member when leaving due 
to redundancy, efficiency or cessation of a joint 
appointment. Cannot use this if you are awarding 
additional pension under 2013 LGPS regulation 31.  
 
Neither 1 nor 2 are funded - all at employer cost.   

1) South Oxfordshire District Council already 
bases redundancy pay on actual pay 
which is greater than the ‘statutory week’s 
pay’ for a redundancy payment, namely 
1.5 x ready reckoner 

2) South Oxfordshire District Council may  
award termination compensation lump 
sum on a case by case basis as agreed 
with Head of Paid Service (Chief 
Executive).  

  
 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 6



Version: August 2021           9 

3: Summary of discretions to be exercised on and after 1 April 2014 (as at 14 May 2018) in relation to members (excluding councillor 
members) who ceased active membership between 1 April 2008 and 31 March 2014 

Occasionally an employer will receive request from a former employee who left the employment and the LGPS under earlier pension scheme 
regulations. The following table shows the mandatory discretions under different regulations according to the leaving date. These are all 
mandatory and to be included in your policy statement.    
 
Where bodies have amalgamated, or services transferred check on your level of inherited responsibility to ensure you include the right category.        

 
An employer has discretion 
to exercise in these areas 

Regulation x 
reference 

Background and points to consider 
(shaded sections are mandatory) 

Simplified suggestions 
 

Will employer switch on ’85-
year rule’ protections for early 
payment of deferred benefit?  
Request made from May 2018   

LGPS 
Administration 
Regulations 
2018 66 and 
sched 2 of 
2014 TP 
Regulations   

Early payment of a deferred benefit – on and after 
May 2018, for those between ages 55-60 does not 
automatically carry the 85-year rule protection to 
unreduced pension.  
The opportunity to request early payment of DB for 
those in this age group only available from May 
2018.  Before then, agreement to early payment 
before age 60 required protection of 85-year rights 
and full employer costs.    
 
Costs fall to the employer, ask Pension Services for 
estimate for decision process  

South Oxfordshire District Council will not 
consider applications to switch on 85-year rule to 
provide early unreduced pension to former scheme 
members. Ideally, include details you need from 
the member to make the decision, if appropriate        
 
South Oxfordshire District Council will not consider 
applications to waive actuarial reductions made by 
members with deferred pensions under any 
circumstance etc.  

Will you ‘switch on’ the 85-year 
rule upon the voluntary early 
payment of a suspended tier 3 
ill health pension? from !4 May 
2018  

LGPS 
Administration 
Regulations 
2018 66 and 
sched 2 of 
2014 TP 
Regulations   

Background, points and costs like those in line 
above – introduced from May 2018 for post 2014 
leavers with suspended tier 3 pension.      
 
 
Costs fall to the employer, ask Pension Services for 
estimate for decision process 

South Oxfordshire District Council will not 
consider applications to switch on 85-year rule to 
provide unreduced pension paid early on request 
to former scheme members after the third-tier ill 
health pension has ceased, and voluntary request 
made for early payment between from age 55-60   
       
 
South Oxfordshire District Council will not consider 
applications to waive actuarial reductions made by 
members with deferred pensions under any 
circumstance etc. 

Will the employer waive 
actuarial reductions due to 
compassionate grounds for an  
early payment of deferred 

LGPS 
regulations 
2007 30(5)  

The additional costs rest with the employer, waiving 
the reduction for early payment is for the lifetime of 
the pension. Apply to Pension Services for details 
of costs.    

South Oxfordshire District Council will not consider 
applications to waive actuarial reduction for early 
pension payments, except in exceptional 
circumstances)  

P
age 40

A
genda Item

 6



Version: August 2021           10 

An employer has discretion 
to exercise in these areas 

Regulation x 
reference 

Background and points to consider 
(shaded sections are mandatory) 

Simplified suggestions 
 

pension - before age 65?  Can 
apply for member with DB  or 
with suspended tier 3 ill health 
pension, left scheme before   
1.4.2008. finding 
compassionate grounds is only 
reason for waiving reduction.  

Sched 2 of TP 
regulations 
2014  
 
 
And 2007 
regulations 
30A(5) 
Sched 2 of TP 
regulations 
2014  
   

 
Notes for the release of pension early for post 14 
members could also be read here   

Include where to present the request    

 
 
  

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 6



Version: August 2021           11 

4: Discretions to be exercised on and after 1 April 2014 (for requests made from 14 May 2018) in relation to members (including 
councillor members) who ceased active membership between 1 April 1998 and 31 March 2008   

1. Will the employer waive reductions on compassionate grounds for an early voluntary payment of pension?  
2. Will the employer switch on the 85-year rule for early payment of DBs requested between ages 55-60?    
3. Will the employer permit early payment of benefit from age 50 and under 55 (always check on the tax situation as may result in 

unauthorised payment charge)? 
 

Contact Pension Services for cost estimates. These areas follow principles mentioned earlier in this table and the LGA  www.lgpsregs.org guide 
to Employer Discretions provide more detailed reference      
 
 
 
 
A note about Councillors / elected members: Although elected members may not now join the LGPS in England, this fund does hold the 
deferred pensions for former councillors from some Districts and the County Council.  Authorities enabling the elected members to join should 
have the 3 mandatory policy areas above prepared for leavers between 1 April 1998 and 31 March 2008 (effective from 14 May 2018). 
  

P
age 42

A
genda Item

 6

http://www.lgpsregs.org/


Version: August 2021           12 

5: Summary of the discretions to be exercised on and after 1 April 2014 (as at 14 May 2018) in relation to members (excluding 
councillor members) who ceased active membership before 1 April 1998  

An employer has discretion to 
exercise in these areas 

Regulation x 
reference 

Background and points to consider 
(shaded sections are mandatory) 

Simplified suggestions 
 

Will employer grant early 
payment of deferred benefit on 
compassionate grounds, under 
what circumstances?  

LGPS 
regulations 
1995 
(Transitional 
Provisions 
1997 2)  

Employer cost involved in agreeing to this early 
payment from age 50 and HMRC charge for 
unauthorised payment  

South Oxfordshire District Council will not consider 
applications to waive actuarial reduction for early 
voluntary retirement from members with deferred 
pensions unless in exceptional circumstances….    
 

  

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 6



Version: August 2021           13 

 6: 2000 Discretionary Regulations  

These regulations still apply in so far as benefits have been awarded in the past for certain leavers before 1.4.2007.  Employers, most likely to be 
County, District Councils and Oxford City, using these in the past should maintain their mandatory policies concerning        
 

 Reduction or suspension of annual compensation (added years) during periods of re employment in local government  and after leaving  
and having opportunity to re-join the LGPS ( even if doesn’t) what level of pension abatement to apply   

 If survived by more than one civil partner or spouse how will the pension be apportioned  

 Whether to suspend  spouse or civil partner pension during periods of re marriage/ partnership or co habitation 

 Whether to reinstate spouse or civil partnership added year’s compensatory pension after remarriage etc has ended    

 Would children’s pension be payable under compensatory regulations when not under LGPS main scheme             

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

P
age 44

A
genda Item

 6



Version: August 2021           14 

Help for Parish Councils  

Suggestion of items to include in report to introduce the discretions policy statement for parish councils - designating bodies (2020 
joining) 

Introduction  
1. Having resolved to become an employer with the Oxfordshire County Pension Fund from [xxxx date] this report introduces the regulatory 

background to the pension scheme and the requirement for fund employers, regardless of size or membership to prepare and maintain a 
policy concerning the discretions this authority can use.  

2. The draft policy statement at [ below, annex .. cross refer/ specify] covers  
a.  the mandatory areas this authority is required to prepare under these regulations and publish and  
b.  non mandatory areas to assist administration           

 
Background  
The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) in England and Wales was amended from 1 April 2014 so that benefits for service after 31 
March 2014, build-up on a defined benefit career average revalued earnings (CARE) basis, rather than on a defined benefit final salary basis.  
The provisions of the CARE scheme, together with the protections for members’ pre 1 April 2014 final salary rights, are contained in the Local 
Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 [SI 2013/2356] and the Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions, Savings 
and Amendment) Regulations 2014 [SI 2014/525].  
 
Scheme employers participating in the LGPS in England or Wales must formulate, publish and keep under review a statement of policy on all 
mandatory discretions (or where the discretion is non-mandatory, are recommended to) which they have the power to exercise in relation to 
members of the CARE Scheme.  
 
This body/authority has no members with any LGPS pension rights before 1 April 2014, therefore the policy statement drafted only concerns 
relevant regulations for our current membership.  Should a future employee bring previous and linked membership, this committee/ body will 
consider any appropriate changes during a regular policy review, which will happen every xxx years or earlier in the event of significant material 
change caused by amending LGPS regulations or …. (provide a reason to review)    
 
In formulating and reviewing its policy a Scheme employer is required by the regulations to have regard to the extent to which the exercise of 
their discretionary powers could lead to a serious loss of confidence in the public service.   
A Scheme employer should always ensure that their discretionary policies are kept up to date and changes must be agreed and published at 
least one month ahead being used.      
  
The following regulations outline the need for a policy and are relevant for our current member(s) and is reflected in the draft policy attached :    
 

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 6



Version: August 2021           15 

1) Must formulate, publish and keep under review a statement of policy on all mandatory discretions (or where the discretion is non-
mandatory, are recommended to) in accordance with:  

- regulation 60 of the LGPS Regulations 2013 [SI 2013/2356],  

- paragraph 2(2) of Schedule 2 to the LGPS (Transitional Provisions, Savings and Amendment) Regulations 2014 [SI 2015/525],  

 
2) Must also formulate, publish and keep under review a statement of policy on all mandatory discretions in accordance with regulation 7 
of the Local Government (Early Termination of Employment) (Discretionary Compensation) (England and Wales) Regulations 2006 [SI 
2006/2914], operative from 1 October 2006.  
 
3) Must formulate, publish and keep under review a statement of policy on all discretions relating to injury allowances in accordance with 
regulation 14 of the Local Government (Discretionary Payments) (Injury Allowances) Regulations 2011 [SI 2011/2954]. 

 
The areas within these regulations for an employer to exercise a decision will often involve additional cost. The Oxfordshire Pension Fund 
expects every employer to consider their own policy and does not issue ‘one size fits all’ employer templates however will supply individual costs 
to assist employers in preparing for decisions.  
 
Recommend  
 
Commend the draft for decision and copy to the pension fund and set a review timetable.    
 
 
 
Referring to the paper above take the columns 1,2 and 4 to be the basis for your policy having regard to local needs, employment practices, 
consultation  and  expected processes.   

P
age 46

A
genda Item

 6



Version: August 2021           1 

 

    

Summary for fund employers in the Oxfordshire Fund of items to include in Policy statement   

Introduction 

It is a statutory requirement to prepare, consult and publish your policy statement, which promotes open administration, helps build awareness of 
pension provisions and ensures correct pension benefit payments. All employers should: 

 prepare and publish written policy statements under LGPS Regulations, Compensation Regulations and Injury Allowance Regulations.   

 send a copy to Oxfordshire Pension Fund.  

 set out and implement a review process 
  

Contents  

How to use this policy summary 
 
Summary of discretions affecting Active members and Leavers on and after 2 April 2014 
 
Other mandatory provisions to be included in a policy, under different regulations and which can apply to active employees regardless of LGPS 
membership 
 
Summary of discretions to be exercised on and after 1 April 2014 (as at 14 May 2018) in relation to members (excluding councillor members) 
who ceased active membership between 1 April 2008 and 31 March 2014 
 
Summary of discretions to be exercised on and after 1 April 2014 (for requests made from 14 May 2018) in relation to members (including 
councillor members) who ceased active membership between 1 April 1998 and 31 March 2008  
 
Summary of discretions to be exercised on and after 1 April 2014 (as at 14 May 2018) in relation to members (excluding councillor members) 
who ceased active membership before 1 April 1998  
 
2000 Discretionary Regulations  

 

Help for Parish Councils  

P
age 47

A
genda Item

 6



Version: August 2021           2 

How to use this policy summary: 

1. Where XXX appears in the document, complete to show the formal name of your employer /authority 
 

2. Delete or add wording in the final column, where applicable, to indicate the decision that you have made 
 

3. Sign the document, before sending to pension.employers@oxfordshire.gov.uk      
 

4. Required / mandatory areas are shown in shaded boxes. These must be included in published statements. 
 

5. Other areas where the employer can use discretion, and which are the most frequently applied are shown too. It is recommended you include 
these in your statements, to help ensure all parties are clear on employer intention and process. 
 

6. The summary shows the required and the frequently used ‘other’ areas to include in a statement of discretionary policies from May 2021. For 
complete listing contact Pension Services    
   

7. Check you apply the parts appropriate to your employer status in the LGPS (admitted, designated, etc)  
 

8. Simplified suggestions have been provided however all employers should prepare their policy being aware of the full requirements and 
precautions – the full list of discretionary policies can be found https://lgpsregs.org/resources/guidesetc.php 

 
 

 
 
 
 
Policy statement prepared and submitted by           Marcia Slater       
 
Date     6 May 2022 
 
To be reviewed ………./……../ …….. 
  

P
age 48

A
genda Item

 6

mailto:pension.employers@oxfordshire.gov.uk
https://lgpsregs.org/resources/guidesetc.php


Version: August 2021           3 

 1: Summary of discretions affecting Active members and Leavers on and after 2 April 2014 

An employer has discretion 
to exercise in these areas  

Regulation 
reference  

Background and points to consider  
(shaded sections are mandatory) 

Simplified suggestions 

Employer to determine who 
will join the scheme (Admitted 
and Designated Bodies)  

2013 LGPS 
regulation 2  

Your committee minutes/ admission agreement must 
specify who will be eligible to join the scheme - either 
by the name, or by type of employment and from 
which date.  

Ensure employee has details including scheme brief 
guide and  www.lgpsmember.org link     

Capita contract commenced on 1 August 2016, 
previous contract was awarded on 31 July 2006 
when the financial services contract was 
outsourced to Capita. 
 
Vinci contract which included Acadis and Indigo 
commenced on 1 August 2016. 
Indigo contract has been subsequently novated to 
SABA from 1 April 2018. 
 
 

  NB Scheduled Bodies including county, district 
councils, FE colleges, academies, university must 
follow LGPS regulatory admission not discretionary, 
however new joiners should be given link to the 
scheme brief guide and advised how their 
contribution rate is assessed    

 

Employer to determine 
member contribution band and 
terms of review. This decides 
the member contribution rate.   

 

2013 LGPS 
regulations 
9/10  

When joining and at every April (the start of the fund 
year) allocate the contribution band determined by 
the employee’s expected annual actual pay – 
pensionable pay.   

Your policy should show if the allocation would 
change mid-year following a material change in pay. 
Inform member of your process      

Ideally members contract should specify what other 
pay and benefits to be ‘pensionable’ (20)(1)(a)    

Vale of White Horse District Council will review 
employee contribution band every April and will 
generally review monthly following a material 
change to pay. 

 

Will employer grant extra 
annual pension? 

2013 LGPS 
regulation 31  

Employer can pay the fund to increase the member’s 
pension up to an additional £7,316 a year (2021 
rate). Grant possible to active member, or within 6 
months of someone leaving on redundancy or 
business efficiency. Full cost is with the employer  

Vale of White Horse District Council will not grant 
extra annual pension unless under exceptional 
compassionate grounds, which will be considered 
by the Senior Management Team. 

(See paragraph 34 in policy)  

P
age 49

A
genda Item

 6

http://www.lgpsmember.org/


Version: August 2021           4 

An employer has discretion 
to exercise in these areas  

Regulation 
reference  

Background and points to consider  
(shaded sections are mandatory) 

Simplified suggestions 

Will employer extend time 
limits for member to make 
decision on transfer of pension 
rights from an approved 
pension scheme?     

2013 LGPS 
regulation 
100(6)    

The member has 12 months from first joining LGPS 
in that employment to receive details, seek advice 
and make decision on transfer. There may have 
been reasons for delays out of the member’s control. 
Employer may want to seek advice on any potential 
financial cost from Pension Services before 
approving request to extend deadline    

Vale of White Horse District Council will not extend 
time limits for transfer decisions.  

See paragraph 13 in policy  

Will employer extend time limit 
for members to NOT link 
(aggregate) their LGPS 
memberships? 

2013 LGPS 
regulation 
22(7)+(8)       

A member joining after April 2014 who has previous 
LGPS membership can elect to keep pension 
records separate but this must be done within 12 
months of starting in that employment.  Without the 
written election pension records will be linked 
together. There may be reasons for delays out of the 
member’s control. 

Vale of White Horse District Council will not 
extend the time limits the member has to make an 
election to keep pension records separate   

See paragraph 14 in policy 

 

Will employer extend time limit 
for members to link 
(aggregate) their LGPS 
memberships? 

Amendment 
LGPS 
regulations 
2018 27 and 
TP 2014 
Regulations 
10  

Quite specific - for those joining scheme again after 
May 2018 but were in scheme during March/April 
2014 and have previous Deferred Benefit. The link 
will not be automatic, must have written election 
within 12 months, employer may allow a later 
election  

Vale of White Horse District Council will extend 
time limits for transfer decisions.   

See paragraph 14 in policy  

Will employer contribute to 
Shared Cost Additional 
Voluntary Contributions 
(SCAVC) ? 

2013 LGPS 
regulation 17   

Whether, how much and in what circumstances to 
contribute to the SCAVC arrangement    

(Recommend consult with Pension Services on any 
payroll / benefit implications before setting this up. )   

Vale of White Horse District Council will not 
contribute to SCAVC arrangement. (Provide 
details of circumstances if entering this 
arrangement)  

 

Will employer include regular 
lump sums when assessing 
value for Assumed 
Pensionable Pay (APP)? 

 
 
 
 
 

2013 LGPS 
regulation 21   

There are times when the pension value must be 
protected yet the member has no or reduced pay. 
Employers assess an assumed value, based on 
three months or twelve weeks of pay immediately 
before the reduction. If in the twelve months before 
the member would have ordinarily received a lump 
sum payment, consider if this should be added back 
to the APP assessment as a reasonable expectation     

Vale of White Horse District Council will when 
appropriate, add back the regular lump sum 
payment to provide the assumed pensionable pay 
figure for purposes.  

*when on reduced pay during child related leave  

*reserves forces leave  

*no or reduced pay during sickness or injury  

*retirement on tier 1 or tier 2  

P
age 50

A
genda Item

 6



Version: August 2021           5 

An employer has discretion 
to exercise in these areas  

Regulation 
reference  

Background and points to consider  
(shaded sections are mandatory) 

Simplified suggestions 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Check on www.LPGSregs.org  for more details on 
APP and when to use and report if you are unsure  

 

NB separate calculations are required if member 
dies in service or retires on ill health even if APP 
already assessed for monthly returns  

*death in service  

 

Consider stating in policy how checks will be made 
and how member and fund are informed. 

Will employer substitute a 
higher value of pensionable 
pay when assessing APP ?  

2018 
amendment 
regulations 7   

Introduced in 2018, but backdated to April 2014, an 
employer may substitute a higher pensionable pay if, 
in their opinion, the value assessed by APP is 
materially lower than member would ordinarily have 
received in the previous year .   Could occur during 
child related leave, reduced on no pay sickness etc  
and be used for ill health retirement on tier 1 or 2, 
death in service. Intention retains level of benefit       

Vale of White Horse District Council will in specific 
circumstances consider substituting a higher value 
of pay in place of APP   

(-in cases where an honorarium may have been 
paid for a considerable time period and that time 
period has lapsed in recent months) 

The decision will be made by the Head of Paid 
Service (Chief Executive) in consultation with 
wider senior management team. 

Consider stating in policy how checks will be made 
and how member and fund are informed.  

Employee/manager would submit a written 
application to Strategic HR, who would agree 
eligibility prior to submission to Head of paid 
Service/Joint Audit & Governance Committee. 

Will employer share the cost of 
purchasing additional pension 
(SCAPC) with a member? 

2013 LGPS 
regulation 
16(2) and (4)    

When an active member elects to buy additional 
pension by extra contributions, would the employer 
voluntarily contribute towards this? What 
circumstances might prompt the action?   

NB be careful not to confuse with restoring lost 
pension after approved absence when employer 
MUST share 2/3rds cost.   

Vale of White Horse District Council will not share 
the cost for a member’s purchase for additional 
pension.  

Will employer extend time limit 
for member to decide to 
restore lost pension by shared 
cost additional pension 
contributions (SCAPC) after a 
period of no pay (other than 

2013 LGPS 
regulation 
16(16)   

After a period of approved unpaid leave, a member 
has 30 days from return to work to receive 
information to enable election for (SCAPC) shared 
cost additional pension contribution, to restore lost 
pension.  

Vale of White Horse District Council will extend 
deadlines beyond 30 days of return to work when 
application shows good reason for the delay in 
decision.  

P
age 51

A
genda Item

 6

http://www.lpgsregs.org/


Version: August 2021           6 

An employer has discretion 
to exercise in these areas  

Regulation 
reference  

Background and points to consider  
(shaded sections are mandatory) 

Simplified suggestions 

due to sickness or paid child 
related leave.)  ? 

Employer must provide lost pay details and advise 
member of opportunity.  

Employer must share costs when election made 
within time limits.  

 

Increasing time limit would allow for any delays in 
administration process.   

Any extension must not exceed three months from 
return to work and decision will be made by Head 
of Corporate Services 

 

Ideally show process of application: 

Strategic HR will engage with employee to assist 
with the calculation for lost pay details, agree 
repayment terms, obtain OCC agreement and 
implement deduction within three months of 
employee returning to work.     

Will employer permit flexible 
retirement?  

2013 LGPS 
regulation 
30(6)   

For members aged at least 55, and with agreement 
of their employer, reduce hours or grade and 
releases pension, giving member choice on taking 
all, part or none of post 31 March 2008 benefits. 
Early payment may mean pension is reduced for the 
member,  

Employer can waive the reduction completely or in 
part, and this is wholly employer cost.  

Always seek guidance on costs from Pension 
Services. Some members may have protected rights 
to unreduced pension, which would increase 
employer costs.  

Member stays in fund in ongoing employment        

Employer has several parts to this discretion which 
should be included-    

Vale of White Horse District Council    

a) will consider applications for flexible retirement 
and subject to cost/ business case will agree 
flexible retirement arrangements (see paragraph 
46-48) 

If it considers a)   

then b) Vale of White Horse District Council will not 
waive any pension reductions and  

c) will not permit member to choose which part of 
their pension to draw (subject to employer cost/ 
business need)   

Will employer switch back on 
’85-year rule’ protections?   

2014 
Transitional 
Provisions 
regulations 
Sched 2   

Unlikely to apply when membership only starts from 
1 April 2014 with no linked previous membership. 
Intention enables employers to pay unreduced 
pension to those voluntarily retiring between 55 and 
60, who could have had 85-year rule protection   – 
cost falls all to employer.  

Vale of White Horse District Council has no pre 
2014 liabilities and this regulation will not apply.  
(This section will be reviewed in the future/ we will 
not switch on this option should any employee 
bring earlier protected rights with them to this 
employment)   

When would employer waive 
actuarial reductions to benefits 
being drawn on early voluntary 
retirement?    

2013 LGPS 
regulation 
30(5)   

Can apply from active, from deferred status and from 
deferred tier 3 ill health retirees, between age 55 and 
normal pension age. Pensions taken early voluntarily 
will be reduced and employer can waive the 
reductions at their own cost.  

Vale of White Horse District Council will not  
consider applications to waive actuarial reduction 
for early voluntary retirement from active 
members, unless in exceptional circumstances 
and in accordance with LGPS regulations. Any 

P
age 52

A
genda Item

 6



Version: August 2021           7 

An employer has discretion 
to exercise in these areas  

Regulation 
reference  

Background and points to consider  
(shaded sections are mandatory) 

Simplified suggestions 

Employers should be clear in their policy on how this 
could apply and under which circumstances. For 
post 2014 membership there is no longer the 
requirement to satisfy compassionate grounds as a 
regulation requirement to release pension early.      

such decision will be made by the Head of Paid 
Services (Chief Executive) in conjunction with the 
Joint Audit & Governance Committee.  

Vale of White Horse District Council will not 
consider applications to waive actuarial reductions 
made by members with deferred pensions etc. ( As 
above) 

 
 
 
  

P
age 53

A
genda Item

 6



Version: August 2021           8 

2: Other mandatory provisions to be included in a policy, under different regulations and which can apply to active employees 
regardless of LGPS membership 

An employer has discretion 
to exercise in these areas  

Regulation 
reference 

Background and points to consider  
 (shaded sections are mandatory) 

Simplified suggestions 

Will employer make an injury 
award to compensate for loss 
of  
a) pay, or  
b) job, or   
c) death due to injury or 
disease sustained at work?      

Regulation 3-7 
of the Local 
Government 
(Discretionary 
Payments) 
(Injury 
Allowances) 
Regulations 
2011 
employers 
(LGPS 
employers),  

The requirement to have a policy is 14(1) of these 
regulations.  
Under what circumstances, for how much and for 
how long would an employee be compensated if in 
performing their duties a person sustains injury or 
disease leading to loss of pay, employment or 
death?  
Injury award could apply to all employees 
regardless of LGPS membership.   
Awards are not funded through the pension 
scheme, all costs rest with employer.   
 
 

Vale of White Horse District Council has set up an 
injury award scheme under these regulations- it’s 
referred to as employers liability insurance. 
 
If will   set out the terms of assessment and 
arrangements to apply.  
 
 
 

Will employer pay enhanced 
redundancy payments and /or 
compensation for loss of 
employment on redundancy 
etc. ?  

Local 
Government 
(Early 
Termination of 
Employment) 
(Discretionary 
Compensation) 
(England and 
Wales) 
Regulations 
2006 

Two decisions in this section available for 
employees   
!) in the event of a redundancy, and person week’s 
pay would be higher than the relevant statutory 
week’s pay –  which would you use to assess 
redundancy payment?  (Regulation 5)  
 
2) an employer can make a termination payment of 
up to 104 weeks pay to an LGPS member or 
someone eligible to be a member when leaving due 
to redundancy, efficiency or cessation of a joint 
appointment. Cannot use this if you are awarding 
additional pension under 2013 LGPS regulation 31.  
 
Neither 1 nor 2 are funded - all at employer cost.   

1) Vale of White Horse District Council 
already bases redundancy pay on actual 
pay which is greater than the ‘statutory 
week’s pay’ for a redundancy payment, 
namely 1.5 x ready reckoner 

2) Vale of White Horse District Council may  
award termination compensation lump 
sum on a case by case basis as agreed 
with Head of Paid Service (Chief 
Executive).  

  
 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 54

A
genda Item

 6



Version: August 2021           9 

3: Summary of discretions to be exercised on and after 1 April 2014 (as at 14 May 2018) in relation to members (excluding councillor 
members) who ceased active membership between 1 April 2008 and 31 March 2014 

Occasionally an employer will receive request from a former employee who left the employment and the LGPS under earlier pension scheme 
regulations. The following table shows the mandatory discretions under different regulations according to the leaving date. These are all 
mandatory and to be included in your policy statement.    
 
Where bodies have amalgamated, or services transferred check on your level of inherited responsibility to ensure you include the right category.        

 
An employer has discretion 
to exercise in these areas 

Regulation x 
reference 

Background and points to consider 
(shaded sections are mandatory) 

Simplified suggestions 
 

Will employer switch on ’85-
year rule’ protections for early 
payment of deferred benefit?  
Request made from May 2018   

LGPS 
Administration 
Regulations 
2018 66 and 
sched 2 of 
2014 TP 
Regulations   

Early payment of a deferred benefit – on and after 
May 2018, for those between ages 55-60 does not 
automatically carry the 85-year rule protection to 
unreduced pension.  
The opportunity to request early payment of DB for 
those in this age group only available from May 
2018.  Before then, agreement to early payment 
before age 60 required protection of 85-year rights 
and full employer costs.    
 
Costs fall to the employer, ask Pension Services for 
estimate for decision process  

Vale of White Horse District Council will not 
consider applications to switch on 85-year rule to 
provide early unreduced pension to former scheme 
members. Ideally, include details you need from 
the member to make the decision, if appropriate        
 
Vale of White Horse District Council will not 
consider applications to waive actuarial reductions 
made by members with deferred pensions under 
any circumstance etc.  

Will you ‘switch on’ the 85-year 
rule upon the voluntary early 
payment of a suspended tier 3 
ill health pension? from !4 May 
2018  

LGPS 
Administration 
Regulations 
2018 66 and 
sched 2 of 
2014 TP 
Regulations   

Background, points and costs like those in line 
above – introduced from May 2018 for post 2014 
leavers with suspended tier 3 pension.      
 
 
Costs fall to the employer, ask Pension Services for 
estimate for decision process 

Vale of White Horse District Council will not 
consider applications to switch on 85-year rule to 
provide unreduced pension paid early on request 
to former scheme members after the third-tier ill 
health pension has ceased, and voluntary request 
made for early payment between from age 55-60   
       
 
Vale of White Horse District Council will not 
consider applications to waive actuarial reductions 
made by members with deferred pensions under 
any circumstance etc. 

Will the employer waive 
actuarial reductions due to 
compassionate grounds for an  
early payment of deferred 

LGPS 
regulations 
2007 30(5)  

The additional costs rest with the employer, waiving 
the reduction for early payment is for the lifetime of 
the pension. Apply to Pension Services for details 
of costs.    

Vale of White Horse District Council will not 
consider applications to waive actuarial reduction 
for early pension payments, except in exceptional 
circumstances)  

P
age 55

A
genda Item

 6



Version: August 2021           10 

An employer has discretion 
to exercise in these areas 

Regulation x 
reference 

Background and points to consider 
(shaded sections are mandatory) 

Simplified suggestions 
 

pension - before age 65?  Can 
apply for member with DB  or 
with suspended tier 3 ill health 
pension, left scheme before   
1.4.2008. finding 
compassionate grounds is only 
reason for waiving reduction.  

Sched 2 of TP 
regulations 
2014  
 
 
And 2007 
regulations 
30A(5) 
Sched 2 of TP 
regulations 
2014  
   

 
Notes for the release of pension early for post 14 
members could also be read here   

Include where to present the request    

 
 
  

P
age 56

A
genda Item

 6



Version: August 2021           11 

4: Discretions to be exercised on and after 1 April 2014 (for requests made from 14 May 2018) in relation to members (including 
councillor members) who ceased active membership between 1 April 1998 and 31 March 2008   

1. Will the employer waive reductions on compassionate grounds for an early voluntary payment of pension?  
2. Will the employer switch on the 85-year rule for early payment of DBs requested between ages 55-60?    
3. Will the employer permit early payment of benefit from age 50 and under 55 (always check on the tax situation as may result in 

unauthorised payment charge)? 
 

Contact Pension Services for cost estimates. These areas follow principles mentioned earlier in this table and the LGA  www.lgpsregs.org guide 
to Employer Discretions provide more detailed reference      
 
 
 
 
A note about Councillors / elected members: Although elected members may not now join the LGPS in England, this fund does hold the 
deferred pensions for former councillors from some Districts and the County Council.  Authorities enabling the elected members to join should 
have the 3 mandatory policy areas above prepared for leavers between 1 April 1998 and 31 March 2008 (effective from 14 May 2018). 
  

P
age 57

A
genda Item

 6

http://www.lgpsregs.org/


Version: August 2021           12 

5: Summary of the discretions to be exercised on and after 1 April 2014 (as at 14 May 2018) in relation to members (excluding 
councillor members) who ceased active membership before 1 April 1998  

An employer has discretion to 
exercise in these areas 

Regulation x 
reference 

Background and points to consider 
(shaded sections are mandatory) 

Simplified suggestions 
 

Will employer grant early 
payment of deferred benefit on 
compassionate grounds, under 
what circumstances?  

LGPS 
regulations 
1995 
(Transitional 
Provisions 
1997 2)  

Employer cost involved in agreeing to this early 
payment from age 50 and HMRC charge for 
unauthorised payment  

Vale of White Horse District Council will not consider 
applications to waive actuarial reduction for early 
voluntary retirement from members with deferred 
pensions unless in exceptional circumstances….    
 

  

P
age 58

A
genda Item

 6



Version: August 2021           13 

 6: 2000 Discretionary Regulations  

These regulations still apply in so far as benefits have been awarded in the past for certain leavers before 1.4.2007.  Employers, most likely to be 
County, District Councils and Oxford City, using these in the past should maintain their mandatory policies concerning        
 

 Reduction or suspension of annual compensation (added years) during periods of re employment in local government  and after leaving  
and having opportunity to re-join the LGPS ( even if doesn’t) what level of pension abatement to apply   

 If survived by more than one civil partner or spouse how will the pension be apportioned  

 Whether to suspend  spouse or civil partner pension during periods of re marriage/ partnership or co habitation 

 Whether to reinstate spouse or civil partnership added year’s compensatory pension after remarriage etc has ended    

 Would children’s pension be payable under compensatory regulations when not under LGPS main scheme             

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

P
age 59

A
genda Item

 6



Version: August 2021           14 

Help for Parish Councils  

Suggestion of items to include in report to introduce the discretions policy statement for parish councils - designating bodies (2020 
joining) 

Introduction  
1. Having resolved to become an employer with the Oxfordshire County Pension Fund from [xxxx date] this report introduces the regulatory 

background to the pension scheme and the requirement for fund employers, regardless of size or membership to prepare and maintain a 
policy concerning the discretions this authority can use.  

2. The draft policy statement at [ below, annex .. cross refer/ specify] covers  
a.  the mandatory areas this authority is required to prepare under these regulations and publish and  
b.  non mandatory areas to assist administration           

 
Background  
The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) in England and Wales was amended from 1 April 2014 so that benefits for service after 31 
March 2014, build-up on a defined benefit career average revalued earnings (CARE) basis, rather than on a defined benefit final salary basis.  
The provisions of the CARE scheme, together with the protections for members’ pre 1 April 2014 final salary rights, are contained in the Local 
Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 [SI 2013/2356] and the Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions, Savings 
and Amendment) Regulations 2014 [SI 2014/525].  
 
Scheme employers participating in the LGPS in England or Wales must formulate, publish and keep under review a statement of policy on all 
mandatory discretions (or where the discretion is non-mandatory, are recommended to) which they have the power to exercise in relation to 
members of the CARE Scheme.  
 
This body/authority has no members with any LGPS pension rights before 1 April 2014, therefore the policy statement drafted only concerns 
relevant regulations for our current membership.  Should a future employee bring previous and linked membership, this committee/ body will 
consider any appropriate changes during a regular policy review, which will happen every xxx years or earlier in the event of significant material 
change caused by amending LGPS regulations or …. (provide a reason to review)    
 
In formulating and reviewing its policy a Scheme employer is required by the regulations to have regard to the extent to which the exercise of 
their discretionary powers could lead to a serious loss of confidence in the public service.   
A Scheme employer should always ensure that their discretionary policies are kept up to date and changes must be agreed and published at 
least one month ahead being used.      
  
The following regulations outline the need for a policy and are relevant for our current member(s) and is reflected in the draft policy attached :    
 

P
age 60

A
genda Item

 6



Version: August 2021           15 

1) Must formulate, publish and keep under review a statement of policy on all mandatory discretions (or where the discretion is non-
mandatory, are recommended to) in accordance with:  

- regulation 60 of the LGPS Regulations 2013 [SI 2013/2356],  

- paragraph 2(2) of Schedule 2 to the LGPS (Transitional Provisions, Savings and Amendment) Regulations 2014 [SI 2015/525],  

 
2) Must also formulate, publish and keep under review a statement of policy on all mandatory discretions in accordance with regulation 7 
of the Local Government (Early Termination of Employment) (Discretionary Compensation) (England and Wales) Regulations 2006 [SI 
2006/2914], operative from 1 October 2006.  
 
3) Must formulate, publish and keep under review a statement of policy on all discretions relating to injury allowances in accordance with 
regulation 14 of the Local Government (Discretionary Payments) (Injury Allowances) Regulations 2011 [SI 2011/2954]. 

 
The areas within these regulations for an employer to exercise a decision will often involve additional cost. The Oxfordshire Pension Fund 
expects every employer to consider their own policy and does not issue ‘one size fits all’ employer templates however will supply individual costs 
to assist employers in preparing for decisions.  
 
Recommend  
 
Commend the draft for decision and copy to the pension fund and set a review timetable.    
 
 
 
Referring to the paper above take the columns 1,2 and 4 to be the basis for your policy having regard to local needs, employment practices, 
consultation  and  expected processes.   

P
age 61

A
genda Item

 6



Joint Audit and Governance 

Committee  

 
Report of Internal Audit Manager 

Author: Victoria Dorman-Smith 

Telephone: 01235 422430 

E-mail: victoria.dorman-smith@southandvale.gov.uk 

SODC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Leigh Rawlins 

Tel: 01189 722565 

E-mail: leigh.rawlins@southoxon.gov.uk 

VWHDC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Andy Crawford 

Telephone: 01235 772134 

E-mail: andy.crawford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk 

 

To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee 

DATE: 5 July 2022 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

7 

 

 

Internal audit activity report quarter one 

2022/23  

 

Recommendations 
 
(a)  That members note the content of the report 
 

 
Purpose of report  
 
1. The purpose of this report is to summarise the outcomes of recent internal audit activity 

at both councils for the committee to consider.  The committee is asked to review the 
report and the main issues arising and seek assurance that action will be/has been taken 
where necessary.  

2. The contact officer for this report is Victoria Dorman-Smith, Internal Audit Manager for 
South Oxfordshire District Council (SODC) and Vale of White Horse District Council 
(VWHDC), email victoria.dorman-smith@southandvale.gov.uk. 

Strategic objectives 
  
3. Delivery of an effective internal audit function will support the councils in meeting their 

strategic objectives. 
 
 

Page 62

Agenda Item 7

mailto:victoria.hughes@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:victoria.dorman-smith@southandvale.gov.uk


Background  
 
4. Internal audit is an independent assurance function that primarily provides an objective 

opinion on the degree to which the internal control environment supports and promotes 
the achievements of the council’s objectives.  It assists the councils by evaluating the 
adequacy of governance, risk management, controls and use of resources through its 
planned audit work, and recommending improvements where necessary.  After each 
audit assignment, internal audit has a duty to report to management its findings on the 
control environment and risk exposure, and recommend changes for improvements 
where applicable.  Managers are responsible for considering audit reports and taking the 
appropriate action to address control weaknesses.  

 
5. Assurance ratings given by internal audit indicate the following: 

Full assurance: There is a good system of internal control designed to meet the system 
objectives and the controls are being consistently applied.  
 
Substantial assurance: There is a sound system of internal control designed to meet 
the system objectives and the controls are being applied. 
 
Satisfactory assurance: There is basically a sound system of internal control although 
there are some minor weaknesses and/or there is evidence that the level of non-
compliance may put some minor system objectives at risk. 
 
Limited assurance: There are some weaknesses in the adequacy of the internal control 
system which put the system objectives at risk and/or the level of non-compliance puts 
some of the system objectives at risk. 
 
Nil assurance: Control is weak leaving the system open to significant error or abuse 
and/or there is significant non-compliance with basic controls. 
 

6. Each recommendation is given one of the following risk ratings: 

High Risk: Fundamental control weakness for senior management action 

Medium Risk: Other control weakness for local management action 

Low Risk: Recommended best practice to improve overall control 

 
Completed audit reports 
 
7. As at 27 June 2022, since the last joint audit and governance committee meeting the 

following audits and follow up reviews have been completed: 
 

Completed Audits: 5 
Full Assurance: 1 
Substantial Assurance: 1 
Satisfactory Assurance: 3 
Limited Assurance: 0 
Nil Assurance: 0 

 

Page 63

Agenda Item 7



Audit Area 
Assurance 
Rating T

o
ta

l 
R

e
c

s
 

H
ig

h
 R

is
k

  

N
o

. 
A

g
re

e
d

 

M
e

d
iu

m
 R

is
k
 

N
o

. 
A

g
re

e
d

 

L
o

w
 R

is
k
 

N
o

. 
A

g
re

e
d

 

Joint 

Capital Management 2021/22 Satisfactory 5 0 0 2 2 3 3 

HB&CTRS 2021/22 Satisfactory 7 0 0 3 3 4 4 

NNDR 2021/22 Satisfactory 4 0 0 3 3 1 1 

S106/CIL 2021/22 Substantial 3 0 0 0 0 3 3 

Disposal of Assets 2021/22 Full 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

SODC  

None         

VWHDC 

None         

 
Follow Up Reviews 

Audit Area 

Initial 
Assurance 
Given N

o
. 

o
f 

R
e

c
s
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 

P
a

rt
ly

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 

N
o

t 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 

N
o

 l
o

n
g

e
r 

a
p

p
li
c

a
b

le
 

Joint 

Covid-19 Response 2020/21 Substantial 10 2 2 1 5 

SODC 

None       

VWHDC 

None       

 
8. Appendix 1 of this report sets out the key points and findings relating to the completed 

audits which have received limited or nil assurance, and satisfactory or full assurance 
reports which members have asked to be presented to committee.  

 
9. Members of the committee are asked to seek assurance from the internal audit reports 

and/or respective managers that the agreed actions have been or will be undertaken 
where necessary.   

 
10. A copy of each report has been sent to the appropriate service manager, the section 151 

officer and the relevant member portfolio holder.  In addition, reports are now published 
on the councils’ intranet and limited assurance reports are reviewed by the strategic 
management team. 

11. Internal audit continues to carry out a six month follow up on all non-key financial audits 
to establish the implementation status of agreed recommendations.   All key financial 
system recommendations are followed up as part of the annual assurance cycle. 

 

Page 64

Agenda Item 7



 
 
Climate and ecological impact implications 
 
12. There are no direct climate or ecological implications arising from this report. 
 
Financial implications 
 
13. There are no financial implications attached to this report. 
 
Legal implications 
 
14. None. 
 
Risks 
 
15. Identification of risk is an integral part of all audits. 

 
 

VICTORIA DORMAN-SMITH 
INTERNAL AUDIT MANAGER

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 65

Agenda Item 7



Joint Audit and Governance 

Committee  

 
Report of Internal Audit Manager 

Author: Victoria Dorman-Smith 

Telephone: 01235 422430 

E-mail: victoria.dorman-smith@southandvale.gov.uk 

SODC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Leigh Rawlins 

Tel: 01189 722565 

E-mail: leigh.rawlins@southoxon.gov.uk 

VWHDC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Andy Crawford 

Telephone: 01235 772134 

E-mail: andy.crawford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk 

 

To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee 

DATE: 5 July 2022 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

8 

 

Internal audit management report 

quarter one 2022/23 

  

Recommendation(s) 
 

(a) That members note the content of the report. 
 

 

Purpose of report 

1. The purpose of this report is: 

 to report on management issues within internal audit; 

 to summarise the progress against the 2021/22 and 2022/23 internal 
audit plans up to 27 June 2022: and 

 to summarise the priorities for quarter two 2022/23. 

2. The contact officer for this report is Victoria Dorman-Smith, Internal Audit 
Manager for South Oxfordshire District Council (SODC) and Vale of White 
Horse District Council (VWHDC), telephone 07766 780835, email 
victoria.dorman-smith@southandvale.gov.uk. 

Page 66

Agenda Item 8

mailto:victoria.hughes@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:victoria.dorman-smith@southandvale.gov.uk


Strategic objectives 
 
3. Delivery of an effective internal audit function will support the councils in 

meeting their strategic objectives. 
 
Background  
 
4. The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS), effective from 1 April 2017, 

state that the head of internal audit should prepare a risk-based audit plan, 
which should outline the assignments to be carried out and the resource 
requirements to deliver the plan, for audit committee approval. The Joint Audit 
and Governance Committee approved the 2022/23 annual internal audit plan 
on 29 March 2022.  

 
5. The PSIAS also states that the head of internal audit must periodically report on 

performance relative to the plan.   
 
Progress against the 2022/23 internal audit plan 

 
6. Progress against the approved internal audit plan for 2022/23 has been 

calculated for the quarter and year to date and is summarised in appendix 1 
attached.   

 
7. Performance figures to date are as follows: 
 

 

Target YTD 

Actuals by Quarter 

Q1 
22/23 

Q2 
22/23 

Q3 
22/23 

Q4 
22/23 

Chargeable 
(identifiable client and/or specific 
IA deliverable) 

71% 58% 58%    

Non-Chargeable  
(corporate, not IA deliverable) 

9% 15% 15%    

Planned Lost 
(i.e. leave) 

16% 21% 21%    

Unplanned Lost 
(i.e. study, sickness) 

4% 6% 6%    

 
8. As of 27 June 2022, the status of audit work against the 2022/23 internal audit 

plan is as follows: 
 
Planned  
Strategic, operational and financial assurance and consultancy work known and 
approved by the joint audit and governance committee.   
 

 

2022/23 Planned 
To 

commence In progress Completed  

Total 30 24 6 0 

Joint 30 24 6 0 

SODC 0 0 0 0 

VWHDC 0 0 0 0 

 
 

Page 67

Agenda Item 8



Ad-hoc 
Unplanned project work based on agreed terms of reference with the audit manager 
(i.e., implementation of new systems) and responsive work issued and agreed by 
the section 151 officer, members, or senior management team (i.e., investigations). 

 

 

2022/23 Requested Complete Draft 
In 

progress 
To 

commence 

Ad-hoc 0 0 0 0 0 

Joint 0 0 0 0 0 

SODC 0 0 0 0 0 

VWHDC 0 0 0 0 0 

 
Follow up  
Work undertaken to ensure that agreed recommendations have been implemented.  
The number of follow-up audits is a rolling number, all internal audit reports are 
followed up after six months unless the area is subject to an annual review. 

 

 
2022/23 Requested Complete In progress 

To 
commence 
Q2 2022/23 

Follow up 0 0 3 3 

Joint 0 0 3 3 

SODC 0 0 0 0 

VWHDC 0 0 0 0 

 
9. The priorities for quarter one are to: 

 Finalise the remaining 2021/22 audit work, in line with the audit plan: 

 Start the Q2 planned audit work for 2022/23. 
 
Climate and ecological impact implications 
 
10. There are no direct climate or ecological implications arising from this report. 
 
Financial implications 
 
11. There are no financial implications attached to this report. 
 
Legal implications 
 
12. None. 
 
Risk implications 
 
13. Identification of risk is an integral part of all audits. 
 

VICTORIA DORMAN-SMITH 
INTERNAL AUDIT MANAGER 

 

Page 68

Agenda Item 8



PROGRESS AGAINST PLANNED AUDITS 2022/23

Audit Area

As at 27 June 2022

Accounts Payable (19)

SODC 6.0 0.0

VWHDC 6.0 0.0

Accounts Receivable (18)

SODC 6.0 0.0

VWHDC 6.0 0.0

Capital Management & Accounting (15)

SODC 3.5 0.0

VWHDC 3.5 0.0

Council Tax (19)

SODC 8.0 0.0

VWHDC 8.0 0.0

General Ledger (18)

SODC 3.5 0.0

VWHDC 3.5 0.0

Housing Benefits & Council Tax Reduction Scheme (19)

SODC 12.0 0.0

VWHDC 12.0 0.0

National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) (19)

SODC 8.0 0.0

VWHDC 8.0 0.0

Payroll (21)

SODC 10.0 4.5

VWHDC 10.0 4.0

Treasury Management (18)

SODC 2.5 0.0

VWHDC 2.5 0.0

Grounds & Parks Maintenance (incl. ROSPA, Tree 
Management & Inspections) (17)
SODC 15 0.0

VWHDC 15 0.0

Housing Allocations (12)

SODC 8.0 1.0

VWHDC 8.0 1.0

Temporary Accommodation (10)

SODC 8.0 0.0

VWHDC 8.0 0.0

Food Safety (11)

SODC 10.0 0.0

VWHDC 10.0 0.0

Financial Accounting (19)

SODC 8.0 0.0

VWHDC 8.0 0.0

Leases (13)

SODC 8.0 0.0

VWHDC 8.0 0.0

Energy Rebate (17)

SODC 8.0 0.0

VWHDC 8.0 0.0

Discretionary Fund (17)

SODC 8.0 0.0

VWHDC 8.0 0.0

Gifts and Hospitality (Officers & Councillors) (11)

SODC 3.5 0.5

VWHDC 3.5 0.5

Community Safety (9)

SODC 3.5 0.5

VWHDC 3.5 0.5

Corporate Consultations (10)

SODC 8.0 0.0

VWHDC 8.0 0.0

Grievance Policy (12)

SODC 3.5 2.5

VWHDC 3.5 2.5

Health & Safety (incl. Lone Working) (16)

SODC 10.0 0.0

VWHDC 10.0 0.0

Information Security (21)

SODC 10.0 0.0

VWHDC 10.0 0.0

IT General Controls - Council Managed Systems (20)

SODC 15.0 2.0

VWHDC 15.0 1.5

Corporate Delivery Framework (14)

SODC 10.0 0.0

VWHDC 10.0 0.0

Business Continuity (17)

SODC 8.0 0.0

VWHDC 8.0 0.0

Risk Management (17)

SODC 8.0 0.0

VWHDC 8.0 0.0

Building Control (14)

SODC 10.0 0.0

VWHDC 10.0 0.0

Ocella System Functionality (14)

SODC 10.0 0.0

VWHDC 10.0 0.0

Garden Communities (16)

SODC 10.0 0.0

VWHDC 10.0 0.0

JOINT PLANNED AUDIT TOTALS 30 484.0 21.0

Completed 0 Full

Draft Out 0 Substantial

In Progress 6 Satisfactory

To Commence 24 Limited

30 0

To Commence Q4

To Commence Q4

In Progress

To Commence Q3

To Commence Q2

To Commence Q2

To Commence Q2

L
o

w

To Commence Q2

A
u

d
it

 
A

llo
c

a
ti

o
n

T
o

ta
l D

a
y

s
 

U
s

e
d

Exception Issues

To Commence Q4

To Commence Q3

0000000

0

0

0

0

0

To Commence Q2

To Commence Q4

To Commence Q4

To Commence Q4

To Commence Q4

To Commence Q3

APPENDIX 1a

T
o

ta
l N

o
t 

A
g

re
e

d

H
ig

h

N
o

. A
g

re
e

d

N
o

. A
g

re
e

d

KEY FINANCIAL AUDITS

M
e

d
iu

m

N
o

. A
g

re
e

d

Status

N
o

. o
f 

R
e

c
s

Audit Opinion

To Commence Q4

To Commence Q2

To Commence Q4

In Progress

To Commence Q4

To Commence Q3

In Progress

To Commence Q3

PLANNED ASSURANCE AUDITS

PLANNED CONSULTANCY AUDITS

To Commence Q3

To Commence Q4

In Progress

To Commence Q2

In Progress

In Progress

Page 69

Agenda Item 8



FOLLOW UP AUDITS IN 2022/23

Audit Area
Total Days 

Used Original Audit Opinion Issued
Total No. of 
Recs Agreed Im

p
le

m
en

te
d

P
ar

tl
y 

Im
p

le
m

en
te

d

N
o

t 
Im

p
le

m
en

te
d

N
o

 L
o

n
g

er
 

ap
p

li
ca

b
le

N
ew

 
re

co
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s

None

None

None

IA FOLLOW UP DURING 2021/22 TOTALS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

JOINT FOLLOW UP TOTALS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

SODC FOLLOW UP TOTALS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

VWHDC FOLLOW UP TOTALS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

APPENDIX 1b

JOINT

SODC

VWHDC

Page 70

Agenda Item 8



 

Joint Audit and Governance 

Committee  

 
Report of Internal Audit Manager 

Author: Victoria Dorman-Smith 

Telephone: 01235 422430 

Mobile: 07766 780835 

E-mail: victoria.dorman-smith@southandvale.gov.uk 

SODC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Leigh Rawlins 

Tel: 01189 722565 

E-mail: leigh.rawlins@southoxon.gov.uk 

VWHDC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Andy Crawford 

Telephone: 01235 772134 

E-mail: andy.crawford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk 

 

To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee 

DATE: 5 July 2022 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

9 

 

 

Internal audit annual report 2021/22 

 

Recommendation(s) 
 
(a) That members note the content of the report. 
 

 
Purpose of Report 

1. The purpose of this report is to report on the work of internal audit in the year 
ended 31 March 2022, and to advise the committee of the internal audit 
manager’s opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the internal 
control environments at South Oxfordshire and the Vale of White Horse 
District Councils. 

2. The contact officer for this report is Victoria Dorman-Smith, Internal Audit 
Manager for South Oxfordshire District Council (SODC) and Vale of White 
Horse District Council (VWHDC), mobile 07766 780835, email 
victoria.dorman-smith@southandvale.gov.uk. 

 
 
 
 

Page 71

Agenda Item 9

mailto:victoria.dorman-smith@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:victoria.dorman-smith@southandvale.gov.uk


 

Strategic Objectives 
 
3. Delivery of an effective internal audit function will support the councils in 

meeting their strategic objectives. 

 
Background  
 
4. Standard 2450 of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) states 

that the internal audit manager must produce an annual report that: 
 

 provides an annual internal audit opinion and report that can be used to 
inform the governance statement. 

 confirms the organisational independence of the internal audit activity  

 gives his or her opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the 
organisation’s control environment. 

 discloses any qualifications to that opinion, together with the reason(s) for 
the qualification. 

 presents a summary of the audit work from which the opinion is derived, 
including reliance placed on work by other assurance bodies. 

 draws attention to any issues the head of internal audit judges particularly 
relevant to the preparation of the Annual Governance Statement. 

 compares the work undertaken to the work that was planned and 
summarises the performance of the internal audit function against its 
performance measures and targets.  

 comments on conformance with the PSIAS; and 

 communicates the results of the internal audit quality assurance 
programme and progress against any improvement plans. 

 
5. The control environment comprises the systems of governance, risk 

management and internal control.  The key elements of the control 
environment include: 

 

 establishing and monitoring the achievement of the organisation’s 
objectives. 

 ensuring compliance with established policies, procedures, laws and 
regulations. 

 ensuring risk management is embedded in the activity of the organisation, 
that leadership is given to the risk management process, and staff are 
trained or equipped to manage risk in a way appropriate to their authority 
and duties. 

 ensuring the economical, effective and efficient use of resources, and for 
securing continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are 
exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness. 

 the financial management of the organisation and the reporting of 
financial management; and 

 the performance management of the organisation and the reporting of 
performance management. 

 
 
 

Page 72

Agenda Item 9



 

Overall Opinion 
 
6. The internal audit manager is satisfied that sufficient internal audit work has 

been undertaken to allow a reasonable conclusion to be drawn as to the 
adequacy and effectiveness of SODC’s and VWHDC’s risk management 
controls, and governance processes.  The internal audit manager’s opinion is 
based on the risk-based audits carried out during the year at each council and 
other unplanned work on control systems.  No reliance has been placed on 
the work of other assurance bodies. 

 
7. It is the internal audit manager’s unqualified opinion that based on the areas 

reviewed during the year, satisfactory assurance can be placed on both 
councils’ general risk management, control, and governance processes.  
Overall, there is basically a sound system of internal control at both councils, 
but there are some weaknesses which may put some system objectives at 
risk. Out of the 34 planned audits (key financial and operational), 21 audits 
were completed (either in draft or final report stage), seven audits were not 
performed, and six audits were deferred, as summarised below:  
 

2021/22 Planned Not Performed  Deferred Completed 

Joint 32 5 6 21 

SODC 1 1 0 0 

VWHDC 1 1 0 0 

TOTALS 34 7 6 21 

 
8. It should be noted that the control environment within key financial systems 

has improved since 2020/21. Five audit reports received a limited assurance 
rating in 2021/22; however, no limited ratings were issued in 2021/22. Of the 
10 planned key financial audits, eight audits were performed, and two audits 
(payroll and pro-active anti-fraud) were not performed. Analysis of the eight 
audit ratings in comparison with previous years is as follows: 

 

Key financial audit 
ratings 

Issued in final Issued in draft 

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2021/22 

Full assurance 0 0 2 0 

Substantial assurance 0 1 0 0 

Satisfactory assurance 4 2 4 2 

Limited assurance 6 5 0 0 

Nil assurance 0 0 0 0 

TOTALS 10 8 6 2 

 
9. Notwithstanding the internal audit manager’s overall opinion, internal audit 

identified several opportunities for improving controls and procedures across 
the councils which officers have generally responded to positively.  A total of 
74 recommendations were raised across the eight key financial audits: 32 
medium risk and 42 low risk.  The two key financial audits given a full 
assurance rating were accounts receivable and treasury management.  

 
10. Where internal audit identified weaknesses, which require remedial action, 

recommendations have been made and discussed with officers.   
 

Page 73

Agenda Item 9



 

11. A summary of the 2021/22 audits is attached as Appendix 1a and a 
comparison of the internal audit opinions across both councils against two 
previous years is as follows.  Please note that a joint report counts as two as 
there can be differing assurance ratings for each council within a joint audit.  
As of 27 June 2022, out of a total of 34 planned audits for 2021/22, 21 audits 
have been completed (15 final report stage and 6 draft report stage): 

 

Planned audit ratings 2019/20 2020/21 
2021/22 

Final 
2021/22 

Draft 

Full assurance 2 (9%) 0 3 (14%) 0 

Substantial assurance 0 2 1 (5%) 1 (5%) 

Satisfactory assurance 18 (48%) 6 (34%) 10 (47%) 4 (19%) 

Limited assurance 14 (43%) 10 (56%) 1 (5%) 1 (5%) 

Nil assurance 0 0 0 0 

TOTALS 34 18 15 6 

 
Summary of Audit Work 
 
12. For 2021/22, internal audit completed 655 chargeable audit days against a 

planned 775 days. This includes planned and unplanned assurance and 
consultancy work, unplanned investigations, ad-hoc advice, audit follow up, 
and audit management.  A comparison of actual days against planned audit 
days for 2021/22 is attached as Appendix 2. 

 
13. A total of 21 joint planned internal audit reviews have been undertaken (of 

which, six audits have been issued in draft).  Of the 21 completed audits, three 
achieved a full assurance rating, two achieved a substantial rating, and 14 
achieved a satisfactory rating.  Limited assurances were issued for 2 audits.  
No reviews resulted in nil assurance being given.   
 

14. In total 218 recommendations to improve controls and procedures within the 
councils were made. Of the 218, 6 (3%) were high risk, 98 (45%) were 
medium risk, and 114 (52%) were low risk. 

 
15. No unplanned contingency or investigation work was undertaken in 2021/22.  

Ad-hoc advice is provided to service teams and a total of 15 days for SODC 
and 15 days for VWHDC were utilised.  

 
16. A total of five joint follow-up reviews and one VWHDC were undertaken during 

2021/22, utilising 18 days as shown at Appendix 1b. Time has been allocated 
within the 2022/23 audit plan for further follow-up work of 2021/22 and 
2022/23 audits. 

 
Internal Audit Performance 
 
17. The internal audit team comprised three auditors and an interim internal audit 

manager for the period 1 April 2021 to 26 November 2021.  The internal audit 
manager returned from maternity leave in November 2021, when the interim 
internal audit manager left the interim position.  
 
 

Page 74

Agenda Item 9



 

18. The performance of internal audit is measured against several indicators.  The 
outturn for 2021/22, including comparison with the previous year, is as follows: 
 

Performance Targets 
Actual performance 2021/22 –  

as at 27 June 2022 

PT1 To issue 90% of audit notifications 
at least 1 month before start of audit 
fieldwork 

80% of audits met this target 

PT2 To issue 90% of draft audit reports 
within 5 working days of completion of 
the exit meeting. 

81% of audits met this target 

PT3 To issue 90% of final audit reports 
within 5 working days of receipt of the 
auditee’s final responses to draft report 
and recommendations. 

87% of audits met this target 

PT4 To issue 90% of follow-up 
notifications at least 1 month before 
start of follow-up work. 

83% of audits met this target 

PT5 To follow up 90% of final reports 
within 6 months of completion of audit. 

50% of audits met this target 

PT6 To complete the audit fieldwork and 
issue draft reports on 100% of key 
financial system audits within the audit 
plan. 

100% of audits met this target 

PT7 To complete the audit fieldwork and 
issue draft reports on 80% of all non key 
financial system audits within the audit 
plan. 

100% of audits met this target 

 

Performance Targets 2021/22 Target Actual as at 27 June 2022 

PT8 Chargeable 
(identifiable client and/or specific IA 
deliverable) 

75% 63% 

PT 9 Non-Chargeable  
(corporate, not IA deliverable) 

8% 17% 

Lost 
(i.e. leave, study, sickness) 

17% 20% 

PT 10 Planned Lost 15% 15% 

PT 11 Unplanned Lost 2% 5% 

 
19. The actual performance of PT1 to PT5 were slightly lower than the target 

performance due to various reasons. In several cases, increased operational 
demands (Covid-19 grant administration for example) resulted in longer time 
taken to complete audit work and obtain management responses etc. which 
were outside of the internal audit team’s control. Where individual auditor 
performance can be improved, the internal audit manager has addressed this 
as part of the Let’s Talk performance management process.    

 
20. Notwithstanding, the internal audit manager considers it to be a good team 

performance, especially the completion of 100 per cent of key financial and 
operational audits (PT6 and PT7). 

Page 75

Agenda Item 9



 

Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme 
  
21. As part of the quality assurance and improvement programme (QAIP) and to 

assist in monitoring and improving the quality and value of service provided, 
auditees are asked to complete an audit feedback questionnaire on internal 
audit’s performance.  Responses received in 2021/22 are summarised in 
Appendix 3. 

 
22. Feedback received by the internal audit manager is discussed with the 

relevant auditor and where necessary, process improvements are 
implemented. 
 

23. Two feedback forms were received back but all showed that the service was 
rated at least satisfactory in all feedback areas, and positive additional 
comments were provided, so no improvement are considered necessary at 
this time. However, auditees will be reminded to complete the feedback forms 
to provide a clearer view of how the service is perceived and any 
improvements identified. 
 

24. There is ongoing monitoring of the performance and quality of internal audit 
work throughout the year.  All internal audit work is reviewed by the internal 
audit manager and feedback provided to auditors regarding the quality and 
audit technique. 

 
25. The PSIAS require the chief audit executive to develop and maintain a quality 

assurance and improvement programme (QAIP) that covers all aspects of the 
internal audit activity. The QAIP must include both internal and external 
assessments and the results of the QAIP and progress against any 
improvement plans must be reported in the annual report.  An internal and 
external assessment has not been undertaken in 2021/22; however, the 
internal audit manager will assess the need for assessments in 2022/23. 

 
Issues relevant to the Annual Governance Statement 
 
26. The internal audit function conforms to the Public Sector Internal Audit 

Standards (2017). There is no non-conformance to the PSIAS Code of Ethics 
and Standards to be highlighted for inclusion in the annual governance 
statement for 2021/22. 

 
Financial implications 
 
27. There are no financial implications attached to this report. 
 
Legal implications 
 
28. There are no legal implications attached to this report. 
 
Climate and ecological impact implications 
 
29. There are no climate or environmental implications. 
 
 
 

Page 76

Agenda Item 9



 

Risk implications 
 
30. Identification of risk is an integral part of all audits. 
 
 

VICTORIA DORMAN-SMITH 
INTERNAL AUDIT MANAGER 

Page 77

Agenda Item 9



PROGRESS AGAINST PLANNED AUDITS 2021/2022

Audit Area

As at 27 June 2022

Capital Management & Accounting (16)

SODC 7.5 11.0 5 0 0 2 2 3 3 0

VWHDC 7.5 11.0 5 0 0 2 2 3 3 0

Council Tax (20)

SODC 10.0 15.5 7 0 0 4 4 3 3 0

VWHDC 10.0 15.5 7 0 0 4 4 3 3 0

Accounts Payable (20)

SODC 10.0 10.0 7 0 0 2 2 5 5 0

VWHDC 10.0 10.0 7 0 0 2 2 5 5 0

General Ledger (19)

SODC 5.0 6.0 4 0 0 2 2 2 2 0

VWHDC 5.0 5.0 4 0 0 2 2 2 2 0

Housing Benefits & Council Tax Reduction Scheme (20)

SODC 10.0 8.0 7 0 0 3 3 4 4 0

VWHDC 10.0 8.0 7 0 0 3 3 4 4 0

National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) (22)

SODC 7.5 9.0 4 0 0 3 3 1 1 0

VWHDC 7.5 9.0 4 0 0 3 3 1 1 0

Payroll (22)

SODC 15.0 0.0

VWHDC 15.0 0.0

Pro-Active Anti-Fraud Review (19)

SODC 10.0 0.0

VWHDC 10.0 0.0

Accounts Receivable (19)

SODC 10.0 16.0 2 0 0 0 0 2 2 0

VWHDC 10.0 15.5 2 0 0 0 0 2 2 0

Treasury Management (18)

SODC 10.0 5.5 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 0

VWHDC 10.0 5.5 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 0

Garden Waste (16)

SODC 7.5 15.0 4 1 1 1 1 2 2 0

VWHDC 7.5 15.0 4 1 1 1 1 2 2 0

Car Parking & Enforcement (12)

SODC 5.0 8.0 13 0 0 6 6 7 7 0

VWHDC 5.0 8.0 13 0 0 6 6 7 7 0

Cash Office (14)

SODC 7.5 16.0 3 1 1 0 0 2 2 0

VWHDC 7.5 16.0 3 1 1 0 0 2 2 0

Contract Management (19)

SODC 10.0 15.5 9 0 0 4 4 5 5 0

VWHDC 10.0 15.0 9 0 0 4 4 5 5 0

Council Fees and Charges (16)

SODC 10.0 11.0 6 0 0 4 4 2 2 0

VWHDC 10.0 10.0 6 0 0 4 4 2 2 0

Covid-19 Grants (N/A)

SODC 10.0 16.0 6 0 0 3 3 3 3 0

VWHDC 10.0 16.0 6 0 0 3 3 3 3 0

Estates & Facitities Management (17)

SODC 10.0 0.0

VWHDC 10.0 0.0

Information Governance (incl. FOI, EIR) (11)

SODC 10.0 5.0 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 0

VWHDC 10.0 5.0 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 0

IT Operations (20)

SODC 10.0 0.0

VWHDC 10.0 0.0

Land Charges (11)

SODC 10.0 8.5 3 0 0 1 1 2 2 0

VWHDC 10.0 8.5 3 0 0 1 1 2 2 0

Learning & Development (N/A)

SODC 10.0 12.5 8 0 0 4 4 4 4 0

VWHDC 10.0 12.5 8 0 0 4 4 4 4 0

Planning Appeals (11)

SODC 10.0 9.0 7 0 0 3 3 4 4 0

VWHDC 10.0 9.0 7 0 0 3 3 4 4 0

Planning Applications (11)

SODC 10.0 0.0

VWHDC 10.0 0.0

Planning Enforcement (15)

SODC 10.0 0.0

VWHDC 10.0 0.0

Procurement (19)

SODC 10.0 0.0

VWHDC 10.0 0.0

Property Management (17)

SODC 10.0 13.0 9 1 1 7 7 1 1 0

VWHDC 10.0 13.0 9 1 1 7 7 1 1 0

Receipt & Collection of Income (15)

SODC 7.5 0.0

VWHDC 7.5 0.0

Section 106/CIL (15)

SODC 5.0 6.5 3 0 0 0 0 3 3 0

VWHDC 5.0 6.5 3 0 0 0 0 3 3 0

Whistleblowing & Fraud (N/A)

SODC 5.0 0.0

VWHDC 5.0 0.0

Cornerstone

SODC 7.0 0.0

Corporate Landlord Approach

SODC 10.0 0.0

VWHDC 10.0 0.0

Didcot Community Facilities

SODC 5.0 0.0

VWHDC 5.0 0.0

Disposal of Assets & Property

SODC 5.0 2.5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

VWHDC 5.0 2.5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

The Beacon

VWHDC 7.0 0.0

JOINT PLANNED AUDIT TOTALS 34 579.0 436.0

Completed 16 Full

Draft Out 5 Substantial

In Progress 0 Satisfactory

To Commence 0 Limited

Deferred 6 Nil

Not Performed (Removed) 7

34 0

Deferred

Full

Satisfactory

Full

Not Performed

Full

Completed

Limited

Completed

Satisfactory

Satisfactory

Completed

Not Performed

Deferred Review of the development management process currently being 
commissioned. No added value from an internal audit. 

L
o

w

Completed

Satisfactory

Satisfactory

A
u

d
it

 
A

ll
o

ca
ti

o
n

T
o

ta
l 

D
ay

s 
U

s
ed

Exception Issues

Satisfactory

Completed

Not Performed

Completed

Draft Out

011411498

This area is moving under Corporate Landlord model, which is a work in 
progress. No added value from an internal audit in 2021/22.

Satisfactory

Satisfactory

Satisfactory

Satisfactory

A review of Covid-19 business, discretionary and councillor grants was 
taken out of the 2020/21 Covid-19 response audit and is performed 
separately in 2021/22..

Satisfactory

9866

28

6

4

218

4

0

Deferred

Limited

Limited

Satisfactory

Satisfactory

Satisfactory

Audit initially started in June 2021 and will recommence in Q4; however, 
the audit scope will be revisited to address current risks. 

Completed

Draft Out

Completed Cash office replaces the Receipt & Collection of Income audit.

Satisfactory

Satisfactory

Completed

APPENDIX 1a

T
o

ta
l 

N
o

t 
A

g
re

ed

H
ig

h

Satisfactory

Satisfactory

Satisfactory

Satisfactory

Satisfactory

N
o

. 
A

g
re

ed

N
o

. 
A

g
re

ed

Satisfactory

KEY FINANCIAL AUDITS

M
ed

iu
m

N
o

. 
A

g
re

ed

Status

N
o

. 
o

f 
R

ec
s

Audit Opinion

Completed Disposal’s strategy newly implemented (Sep-21). Limited review of policy 
contents and any disposals since adoption of new policy. Full

Full

Not Performed Work is either underway or under consideration in this area, so no value to 
be gained at this stage from a consultancy review.

Not Performed Work is either underway or under consideration in this area, so no value to 
be gained at this stage from a consultancy review.

Deferred Recent Council paper considered planning enforcement, therefore audit 
deferred.

Limited

Completed Review of income collection.

Substantial

Substantial

Not Performed

Audit not required, no areas of concern or high risk.

Work is either underway or under consideration in this area, so no value to 
be gained at this stage from a consultancy review.

Replaced by a Cash Office audit, which is already completed.

Completed

Satisfactory

Satisfactory

Substantial

Draft Out Replaces Payroll 21/22 audit.

Satisfactory

Satisfactory

Deferred Significant work on IT strategy currently in progress, defer audit to a later 
date, once finalised.

Draft Out

Draft Out

Completed

Work is either underway or under consideration in this area, so no  value to 
be gained at this stage from a consultancy review.

Satisfactory

PLANNED ASSURANCE AUDITS

PLANNED CONSULTANCY AUDITS

Completed

Completed

Full

Not Performed

Completed

Deferred New procurement strategy in place – audit in 22/23 to review progress. 

Payroll not audited in 21/22, due to the previous audit being reported in 
July 2021. However, a follow up of the previous audit recommendations 
will be performed in Q4 and the next payroll audit will be scheduled for Q1 
of 22/23. Payroll is replaced by Learning and Development.
Review of fraud risks considered in every audit now – new scoping 
template to support this. Separate audit not required.

Satisfactory

No specific areas of concern and last audited in 17/18.

Substantial

Page 78

Agenda Item 9



FOLLOW UP AUDITS IN 2021/22

Audit Area
Total Days 

Used Original Audit Opinion Issued
Total No. of 
Recs Agreed Im

p
le

m
en

te
d

P
ar

tl
y 

Im
p

le
m

en
te

d

N
o

t 
Im

p
le

m
en

te
d

N
o

 L
o

n
g

er
 

ap
p

li
ca

b
le

N
ew

 
re

co
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s

Data Protection/GDPR 2019/2020 3 Satisfactory 8 0 7 1 0 0

Information Security (Including Cyber Security) 
2019/2020

5 Limited 7 1 1 5 0 0

Lone Working/ Officer Security 2019/2020 2 Satisfactory 12 3 9 0 0 0

COVID-19 Response Governance Review 2020/2021 3 Substantial 10 2 2 1 5 0

HR Management & Reporting (Inc. Annual Leave 
Calculation) 2020/2021

3 Satisfactory 12 8 3 1 0 0

None

Moorings 2019/2020 2 Satisfactory 8 2 2 4 0 0

IA FOLLOW UP DURING 2021/22 TOTALS 18 57 16 24 12 5 0

JOINT FOLLOW UP TOTALS 16 49 14 22 8 5 0

SODC FOLLOW UP TOTALS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

VWHDC FOLLOW UP TOTALS 2 8 2 2 4 0 0

JOINT

SODC

VWHDC

APPENDIX 1b

Page 79

Agenda Item 9



Internal audit plan 2021-2022 - reconciliation with actual days                   APPENDIX 2 
 

Description 

Budgeted 
Days  

2021/22 

Actual Days 
as at 

31/03/2022 Variance 

Available days    

1 internal audit manager (52 weeks x 5 days) 260 260 0 

1 auditor (52 weeks x 5 days) 260 260 0 

1 auditor (52 weeks x 5 days)  260 260 0 

1 auditor (52 weeks x 5 days) 260 260 0 

Total Available days 1,040 1,040 0 

    

Lost Days    

Planned: annual leave entitlement, public holidays, and 
Christmas shutdown 

159 157.5 (2) 

Unplanned: sickness absence & other 20 48.5 28.5 

Total Lost Days 179 206 27 

    

Non-chargeable days     

Administration  50 117 67 

Training and development 20 14 (6) 

Corporate and internal audit team meetings 16 48 32 

Total non-chargeable days 86 179 93 

    

Chargeable Days    

Internal audit plan 2020/21 44 103.5 60 

Internal audit plan 2021/22 (planned assurance) 460 361 (99) 

Internal audit plan 2021/22 (planned consultancy) 44 33 (11) 

Consultancy (unplanned) 42 10 (32) 

Contingency/investigations (unplanned) 35 0 (35) 

Ad-hoc advice 35 30 (5) 

Internal audit follow up  25 13 (12) 

Audit management 80 104.5 25 

Five Councils Partnerships 10 0 (10) 

Total chargeable days 775 655 (120) 

    

Total lost, non-chargeable, chargeable days 1,040 1,040 0 

    

Proportion of chargeable days 75% 63% -12% 

Proportion of non-chargeable days 8% 17% 9% 

Proportion of lost days 17% 20% -3% 

 

Page 80

Agenda Item 9



INTERNAL AUDIT FEEDBACK 2021/22            APPENDIX 3 
 
Two audit feedback questionnaires were returned during 2021/22.  Questionnaire responses were received for the following audits: 

1. Property Management 2021/22 (December 2021) 
2. S106 / CIL 2021/22 (May 2022) 

 
AUDIT PLANNING AND SCOPE OF WORK 

 Very Good Good Satisfactory Poor Very Poor Did Not Answer 

1. Consultation on the scope and coverage of the audit  2     

2. Minimal disruption to daily activities 1  1    
 
COMMUNICATION 

 Very Good Good Satisfactory Poor Very Poor Did Not Answer 
3. Consultation and communication during the audit 1     1 

4. Communication of audit findings and recommendations 2      
 
QUALITY OF AUDIT REPORT 

 Very Good Good Satisfactory Poor Very Poor Did Not Answer 
5. Clarity and conciseness of the audit report 2      

6. Fulfilment of the audit scope and objectives 2      

7. Accuracy, validity and significance of the audit findings 1 1     

8. Audit recommendations - constructive, practical and logical 2      
 
PROFESSIONAL PROFICIENCY 

 Very Good Good Satisfactory Poor Very Poor Did Not Answer 
9. Professionalism of the auditor(s) 2      

10. Advice given by the auditor(s) 2      
 
GENERAL 

 Very Good Good Satisfactory Poor Very Poor Did Not Answer 
11. Usefulness of audit in identifying risks and improving controls 2      

12. Overall evaluation of the quality of the audit service provided 2      

 
TOTALS 

 Very Good Good Satisfactory Poor Very Poor Did Not 
Answer 

 19 3 1   1 

P
age 81

A
genda Item

 9



OTHER COMMENTS RECEIVED 
 

 
Property Management 2021/22: 

The findings of the report have further highlighted concerns of the current way the council manage and operate its assets 9land and buildings).  This is further 
evidence to support the councils wishes to move to a corporate landlord model.  SMT have approved the corporate landlord model - design phase which is 
due to start early in the new year.  This will help shape how the councils will deal with asset management.  

 
This audit has been conducted during changes in both the councils’ structure and personnel in key positions for the newly formed Development and Corporate 
Landlord service.  This has caused delays in the completion of the field work to agreeing the final report.  John’s patience’s and understanding has been 
much appreciated. 
 

S106/CIL 2021/22: 
I would like to take this opportunity to thank Patricia for her guidance in steering me through the audit process and working with the team on understanding 
the processes used to formulate clear and productive recommendations. 

 
 

 

P
age 82

A
genda Item

 9



 

JAGC July 2022 
1 

 

JOINT AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 

 
  
Report of the Head of Corporate Services 

Author: Deborah Porter, Health and Safety Advisor 

Telephone: 07523 939188 

E-mail: deborah.porter@southandvale.gov.uk 

SODC cabinet member responsible:  

Councillor Andrea Powell 

AGENDA ITEM  
 

10 
 

E-mail: andrea.powell@southoxon.gov.uk 

Telephone: 07882 584120 

VWHDC cabinet member responsible:  

Councillor Debby Hallett 

Telephone: 07545 241013 

E-mail: debby.hallett@whitehorsedc.gov.uk 

To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee 

DATE: 5th July 2022 

 

Health and Safety Progress Review 

Recommendation(s) 

(a) That the committee undertakes a half-yearly progress review of Health and Safety 
actions as outlined in the Health and Safety strategic review and notes the progress 
made against the corporate Health and Safety Action Plan. 

 

Purpose of the review 

1. This is the next progress review of the Health and Safety actions as outlined in 
the Health and Safety Strategic review undertaken in 2019 and subsequent 
action plan. This review follows on from the joint audit and governance committee 
report on 29th March 2022.  

Strategic Objectives  

2. Managing the business safely underpins all our strategic objectives. 

Page 83

Agenda Item 10



 

JAGC July 2022 
2 

 

Background 

3. As part of the ongoing commitment to a robust health and safety management 
system some key actions were outlined in a report to this committee in January 
2021. 

4. The actions support and contribute to more efficient procedures and services, 
provide for an assessment where necessary and an update of health and safety 
compliance. They introduce mechanisms for the escalation of health and safety 
performance outcomes and enable the councils to demonstrate adherence to the 
requirements of UK health and safety legislation. 

Progress on actions  

5. The move of the Health and Safety team to People and Culture has been 
positive. However, additional resource is ideally required to fully support the 
operational delivery of the councils’ health and safety objectives, this is now 
under evaluation with there being an unfilled and budgeted Health and Safety 
position in the establishment list.  

6. The programme of work to review and develop a suite of core policies that 
underpin the councils’ health and safety management system continues. Through 
a process of collaborative work groups facilitated by health and safety, good 
worker involvement and the capture of best practice is being ensured. Key 
policies on the cusp of delivery include the councils’ new Hybrid and Remote 
Working Policy to support the councils new working arrangements, the Lone 
Working Policy to consolidate the new safeguards the councils have put in place 
and the First Aid Policy to address the various council operated sites and the 
transient nature of the office users. In addition, advice and guidance has been 
provided to Strategic HR to develop the Alcohol, Drugs and Substance Misuse 
Policy, the Working Abroad Policy and Volunteering Policy. 

7. With the approval of the Safety Champions forum complete, selection of suitable 
Safety Champions by the heads of service continues, with most areas now 
positively represented. The support pack for the Safety Champions is being 
developed and the start date for the forum remains pending. 

8. Training continues to be an integral part of the competency framework for staff 
and ensuring good health and safety performance for the councils. In addition to 
the mandatory training requirements to work safely in the role, consideration is 
also being given to what forms of cultural health and safety training would benefit 
the councils.  

For example, supported by the councils’ wellbeing team, effective and cost-
efficient ways to build and manage the mental resilience of the workforce are 
being explored and a plan of action developed. With this in place, the councils will 
be able to better monitor and manage the negative impacts of stress on the 
organisation and its staff as well as measure the effectiveness of the wellbeing 
strategies so they can be adapted where needed.  

Current activities in this regard include consolidation of the findings from the 2019 
workforce wellbeing surveys, refresher training for the Mental Health First Aiders, 
and practical workshops covering lone working, personal safety and conflict 

Page 84

Agenda Item 10



 

JAGC July 2022 
3 

 

management to provide staff with the tools required to better manage stressful 
situations. In addition, a selection of informal networking activities devised and 
championed by the councils’ wellbeing team are being run to help re-invigorate 
the informal communication routes in the new remote working climate.  

9. Measuring health and safety performance continues and requires a robust 
reporting culture to enable the councils to adequately identify and manage health 
and safety risks. The Strategic Management Team (SMT) are provided with 
health and safety performance reports that inform on the actions required within 
their service areas, where applicable, to manage the risk and support the health 
and safety management system. The latest summary of the councils’ 
performance is provided in Appendix 1.  

10. Communication of health and safety matters is fundamental for good health and 
safety performance and the programme of work continues. To date, the new 
process to monitor staff awareness of changes in policies and processes through 
Leah, the councils’ learning management system, is now in place and health and 
safety are now included for comments on gateway projects. The health and 
safety team are also working closely with the councils’ communication team to 
improve and update and the councils’ intranet pages.  

11. Health and safety general activities continue to support across the whole 
organisation, with development of policies and procedures, advice and guidance 
for risk assessments, specific projects, new activities and incident investigations. 
Health and safety continue to administer the lone worker system and other 
council tools, organise and procure suitable health and safety training courses, 
and assist with site inspections as needed. In addition to the above, health and 
safety are also working with councils’ internal audit team to help monitor health 
and safety compliance across the councils.  

12. Continuous improvement of the health and safety management system is a key 
deliverable for enhancing the councils’ performance. Health and safety continue 
to work to simplify and reduce the documentation and work burden on staff, 
through centralising policies and procedures.  

 

Key performance indicators 
 

13. Current key performance indicators relate to the number of incidents and near 
miss incidents. Appendix 1 provides a summary of incidents and near misses 
since the start of the financial year, April 2022 to present. Notable trends include 
the rise in incidents of abuse and threat to staff working directly with the public.  

 

Financial Implications 

14. There are financial implications if we fail to fulfil our duties under HASWA. These 
range from prosecution and fines for lack of suitable safety management 
procedures and implementation through to specific prosecution fines and claims 
payments for not delivering safe plant, equipment, buildings, locations and 
processes. 

Page 85

Agenda Item 10



 

JAGC July 2022 
4 

 

Legal Implications 

15. As above there are legal implications if we fail to fulfil our duties under HASWA. 

Risks 

16. Risk identification is an integral part of our health and safety management system 
and of this progress review. 

Other Implications 

17. Any major incident or injury caused to staff, the public or our contractors as a 
result of failure in our health and safety system could result in significant 
reputational damage. 

Background Papers 

None 

Page 86

Agenda Item 10



 

JAGC July 2022 
5 

 

Appendix 1 - Health and Safety Key Performance Indicators 
 
The graphs below provide a summary of incidents and near misses that have occurred 
at the councils, with a total of 10 incidents occurring since the start of this council year. 
Health and safety continue to champion the reporting of near misses / potentially 
dangerous (PDS) by staff. These incidents provide an opportunity for the councils to 
reduce their liability and protect from more serious and costly incidents occurring in 
the future. It should be noted that the rate of reporting is significantly lower than 
theoretically expected for the type and size of the organisation.  
 
 
Abuse and threat to staff working directly with the public remains a concern, for 
councillors reading this report who face similar risk, the government has compiled   
some  advice and guidance that you can use to stay safe, this is available for you to 
read at: local.gov.uk/councillors-guide-handling-harassment-abuse-and-intimidation.  
 
 

 

Page 87

Agenda Item 10

https://www.local.gov.uk/councillors-guide-handling-harassment-abuse-and-intimidation


 

JAGC July 2022  
1 

 

Joint Audit and Governance 

Committee 
 

 
  
Report of the Head of Policy and Programmes 

Author: Yvonne Cutler Greaves 

Telephone: 07917 088357 

E-mail: yvonne.cutlergreaves@southandvale.gov.uk 

South cabinet member responsible: Councillor Andrea Powell 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

11 
 

E-mail: andrea.powell@southoxon.gov.uk 

Telephone: 07882 584120 

Vale cabinet member responsible:  

Councillor Debby Hallett 

Telephone:  07545 241013 

 E-mail: debby.hallett@whitehorsedc.gov.uk 

To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee 

DATE: 5 July 2022 

 

Corporate risk review 

Recommendation(s) 

(a) That the Committee undertakes a half yearly progress review of the corporate risk 
registers as outlined in the risk management strategy. 

 

Purpose of the review 

1. This is the half yearly progress review of the corporate risk registers for South 
Oxfordshire District Council and Vale of White Horse District Council. This 
review follows on from the joint audit and governance committee report in 
January 2022. 

2. The contact officers are Yvonne Cutler Greaves, Assurance Team Leader and 
Allison Holliday Risk and Insurance Officer for South Oxfordshire District Council 
(SODC) and Vale of White Horse District Council (VoWHDC).  

Strategic Objectives  

3. Openness and accountability in South Oxfordshire.  

Page 88

Agenda Item 11



 

JAGC July 2022  
2 

 

4. Working in an open and inclusive way in the Vale of White Horse.      

Background 

5. The corporate risk registers attached have been compiled as outlined in the risk 
management framework and reviewed and updated with individual Heads of 
Service.  

6. There are a total of 16 risks (23 last report) on the South Oxfordshire District 
Council corporate risk register and 16 risks (25 last report) on the Vale of White 
Horse District Council corporate risk register.  

7. The top nine risks for South Oxfordshire District Council are shown below: 

Risk ref  Description Risk 
score 
Gross/Net 

49 Third party contractors BCP’s and files back-ups are 
not fit for purpose.  

8/8 

65 IT Cybersecurity breach due to inadequate security 
protection of the council’s external website 

8/6 

2 IT Cybersecurity breach due to inadequate security 
protection of Software (Zellis/Unit4 etc) 

8/6 

11 Failure to fulfil the Data Protection legislative 
requirements.  

8/6 

9 Failing to have an effective health and safety 
management system in place. 

8/6 

58 IT and data security compromised due to remote 
working and naïve user behaviour 

8/6 

4 Failure to manage the security of all council owned 
assets including council offices 

7/5 

23 Lack of informed and consistent decision making 
across the council 

7/3 

66 New Risk Failure to consider the economic impact on council 
finances of war in Ukraine 

7/3 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 89

Agenda Item 11



 

JAGC July 2022  
3 

 

8. The top eight risks for Vale of White Horse District Council are shown below: 

Risk ref  Description Risk 
score 
Gross/Net 

50 Third party contractors BCP’s and files back-ups are 
not fit for purpose. 

8/8 

67 IT Cybersecurity breach due to inadequate security 
protection of the council’s external website 

8/6 

2 IT Cybersecurity breach due to inadequate security 
protection of Software (Zellis/Unit4 etc) 

8/6 

11 Failure to fulfil the Data Protection legislative 
requirements. 

8/6 

9 Failing to have an effective health and safety 
management system in place. 

8/6 

62 IT and data security compromised due to remote 
working and naïve user behaviour 

8/6 

4 Failure to manage the security of all council owned 
assets including council offices 

7/3 

68 New Risk Failure to consider the economic impact on council 
finances of war in Ukraine 

7/3 

 

9. One Risk has increased the net risk score. 

Risk ref 
South/Vale 

Description Risk score 
Gross/Net 

49/50 Third party contractors BCP’s and files back-ups 
are not fit for purpose. 

8/8 

 

10. Two risks have reduced their net risk score in South Oxfordshire District Council 
and in Vale of White Horse District Council since last reported in January 2022: 

Risk ref 
South/Vale 

Description Risk score 
Gross/Net 

23/22 Lack of informed and consistent decision making 7/3 

Page 90

Agenda Item 11



 

JAGC July 2022  
4 

 

41/41 Major incident in the district - failure to adequately 
respond to a major incident affecting our residents 

5/3 

 

11. There are two new risks for South Oxfordshire District Council and Vale of White 
Horse District Council: 

Risk ref 
South/Vale 

Description Risk score 
Gross/Net 

66/68 Failure to consider the economic impact on council 
finances of war in Ukraine 

7/2 

67/69 Failure to support and equip staff for hybrid working 5/3 

 

12. Three risks have been successfully mitigated and completed in South 
Oxfordshire District Council and four risks have been successfully mitigated in 
Vale of White Horse District Council 

Risk ref 
South/Vale 

Description 

8/8 Failure to attract and recruit staff with the necessary skills 

64 Vale only Failure to eliminate or significantly reduce revenue budget 
funding gap 

42/47 Failure to communicate with our residents 

7/7 Poor staff morale and wellbeing 

 

13. Seven risks in South Oxfordshire District Council and Eight in Vale of White 
Horse District Council have been returned to the appropriate service area risk 
registers for review: 

Risk ref 
South/Vale 

Description 

18/17 Failure to realise future funding for Garden Communities. 

26/25 Lack of asset management expertise of council owned land and 
property portfolios 

63/66 Failure to deliver on Joint local planning policy 

Page 91

Agenda Item 11



 

JAGC July 2022  
5 

 

24/24 Failure to maintain a consistent standard of customer service 

42/47 Failure to engage and communicate with our residents 

19/18 Failure to capitalise on and influence national initiatives that 
benefit the districts 

62/65 Government actions in the Oxford-Cambridge Arc a 

46 (Vale only) Abingdon reservoir plans result in a financial impact for the 
council 

 

Financial Implications 

14. There are financial implications attached to managing the risks outlined in the 
corporate risk registers, and risk owners are responsible for ensuring costs of 
mitigation are proportionate to the risk exposure. 

 Legal Implications 

15.  None.  

  Risks 

16. Risk identification is an integral part of this progress review. 

 Other Implications 

17. None 

Attached: 

 South Corporate Risk Register Jul 2022 

 Vale Corporate Risk Register Jul 2022 

Page 92

Agenda Item 11



SODC 

Corporate 

Sa All themes

Sb Protect and restore our natural world

Sc Openness and Accountability

Sd Action on Climate emergency 

Se Improved economic and community well-being

Sf Homes and Infrastructure that meet local needs

Sg Investment that rebuilds our financial Viability
A B C D E F G H I J K L

Risk 

No/Ref

Corporate 

Strategic 

Themes

Risk category Risk description / consequences Gross risk 

rating

Risk owner Mitigation actions Action owner Net risk rating Tolerable Y/N Further mitigation actions if required Review by when

49

Sa Operational Third party  contractors Business Continuity Plans (BCP) 

and file back ups are not fit for purpose and may result in poor 

customer service and loss of council reputation if there  

a) is  failure of IT infrastructure.

b) Disaster Recovery  Incident

8

Mark Stone, Adrianna 

Partridge, Suzanne Malcolm

IT

There is a review of the IT Business continuity Plan (BCP) across 5CP . Ongoing review council  Business 

Resilience Plans (BRP's)  IT arrangements .

Capita have 30 days of back up  at any one time. 

Because there is no immutable backup of councils’ data and application within Capita network,

5C partners are exploring implementation of offline backups for council data stored on Capita network via 

3rd party supplier. 

External funding has been provided to assist in implementation and deployment. No dates have been 

provided at this time.

CAPITA are now deliverig abnnu;la DR tests for 5CP, next schedule test is end of July' 22

All other Third Party Contractors

Review all Third Party  BCP's to ensure that they are fit for purpose. 

All Service Managers

8 Y

No remote back up from CAPITA currently. Discussions are ongoing fro the  

planned separation of Office 365 from 5CP and move IT services to Azure (cloud) 

delayed due to increased cost to undertake this work, hence this net risk rating 

has not been mitigated down. Currently ETA end of 2022 early 2023 , subject to 

further discussion.

Review procurement procedures to include Third Party BCPs .

Develop training on contract management  and monitoring to  ensure the council 

manage performance effectively.

Maintain Spreadsheet of Third Party Market performance Share price to monitor 

potential issues with contractor viability/performance. Continue to monitor the 

situation.  External 3rd party backups will still be needed. Due to constant delays 

the net risk has increased to 8

CAPITA are proposing to move all of the 5CP servers to their MS Azure 

environment, this will remove conuncil reliance on CAPITA servers reuslting in 

improved resilence and availability.

Jul-22

65

Sa Technology 

security

IT Cybersecurity breach due to inadequate security protection of 

the councils external website may lead to the council systems and 

data being compromised and result in council financial and 

reputation loss.

8

Adrianna Partridge                                                                                                                                                                                                               

The council has an experienced  information governance officer and data protection officer in post. A 

senior IT manager has been trained and now holds a  certificate in  Cyber security (CISM)

Cyber and data security working group which includes members from  IT, Risk and Insurance, Business 

continuity and the Data protection Officer are working through the data security Internal Audit 

recommendations ;have instigated Cyber and Data Security awareness campaigns to improve user 

awareness whilst working from home.

The councils Emergency Planning/Business Continuity officer currently chairs the TVLRF Cyber Resilience 

Working Group which meets quarterly to share learning and discuss cyber risks. Partner agencies share 

learning and warn and inform on any breaches to LRF partners.

The councils were chosen by the LGA to undergo an external LGA cyber audit. 

The councils websites are now hosted on a Government approved hosting platform external to CAPITA. It 

is now monitored and managed , the updates to Wordpress software are also updated regularly. What is 

excluded is updates as result of vulnerabilities to SAV  specific modules requires monitoring.

Simon Turner

6 Y

 New applications being deployed directly as Software as a Service (SaaS) will 

have Single-Sign On (SSO) protocols enabled. SSO delivers login to the SaaS 

application directly to an end-user by automating the login via their Microsoft 365 

credentials , website admin.This makes is harder for cyber-criminals to access 

these applications without a legitimate M365 login. It also improves leaver access 

to applications as accounts are automatically disabled across all SSO systems 

when the Capita login account is closed.Cyber incident plan for SAV drafted for 

review.

Jul-22

2

Sa                                                                        Technology 

security

IT Cybersecurity breach due to inadequate security 

protection of the Software as Service Non cloud applications 

(Zellis/Unit 4 etc) may lead to the council systems and data being 

compromised and result in council financial and reputation loss.

8

Adrianna Partridge CAPITA information security infrastructure provides continuous updates of security software, firewalls and 

patches. The 5CP Information security group regularly meets to discuss issues and mitigation actions.                                                                                                                                                                                                                  

The council has an experienced  information governance officer and data protection officer in post. A 

senior IT manager has been trained and now holds a  certificate in  Cyber security (CISM)

Cyber and data security working group which includes members from  IT, Risk and Insurance, Business 

continuity and the Data protection Officer are working through the data security Internal Audit 

recommendations ;have instigated Cyber and Data Security awareness campaigns to improve user 

awareness whilst working from home.

The councils Emergency Planning/Business Continuity officer currently chairs the TVLRF Cyber Resilience 

Working Group which meets quarterly to share learning and discuss cyber risks. Partner agencies share 

learning and warn and inform on any breaches to LRF partners.

 Multifactor authentication (MFA) has been deployed to all staff and councillors. Capita VPN already has 

MFA. By adding additional layer of authentication it makes it difficult for login account to be compromised 

as an additional item of security is needed to using a password. Account passwords lengths increased 

across all accounts. Capita are doing annual penetration tests as a result of that a revised action plan of 

vulnerabilities is produced and worked through with each of the 5CP. Monthly updates are held with Capita 

security team on progress. This is a continuous programme as there are new vulnerabilities appearing all 

the time. We are now members of SEGWARP a local government security forum in the SE.

Simon Turner

6 Y

Metacompliance Training Modules have been purchased and will be rolled out to 

all staff and councillors on LEAH.Awaiting configuration of LEAH to design the 

training modules for staff. Review of Cllr awareness underway with 30 min 

briefings and regular In Focus updates to be agreed .                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   

Looking to implement single sign in of council networks using S/V credentials 

which will provide an extra level of complexity. This is dependent upon the 5CP 

tenancy split in 2022.  New applications being deployed directly as Software as a 

Service will have Single-Sign On (SSO) protocols enabled. SSO delivers login to 

the SaaS application directly to an end-user by automating the login via their 

Microsoft 365 credentials. This makes is harder for cyber-criminals to access 

these applications without a legitimate M365 login. It also improves leaver access 

to applications as accounts are automatically disabled across all SSO systems 

when the Capita login account is closed.      

Jul-22

11

Sb                                                                        Procedural/         

regulatory

Failure to fulfil the  Data Protection legislative requirements 

may result in fines, insurance claims and reputational damage if 

data is breached or a challenge is made

8

 Patrick Arran (DPO) Information Governance and Data Protection role provides dedicated support to all teams as well as work 

to develop/review the corporate framework and all relevant policies.  Close liaison with Legal on data 

sharing agreements and review of contract clauses.  Additional Information Governance Officer is a 

permanent post . Updates to Record of Processing Activities (ROPA) during 20/21 to be embedded as a 

regular review process.  Data Protection Impact Assessments ( DPIAs) considered for all new processes 

and Data Protection Team/Officer advice sought on all new projects. Data protection training for all staff on 

LEAH.  Internal Audit of Data Protection  satisfactory assurance. Keep up to date with guidance from the 

information Commissioner and other bodies in relation to data protection and information rights. We are 

undertaking assurance work and completing the ICO assurance framework.

Working from abroad Policy in place to ensure staff are aware of requirements

Sandy Bayley

6 Y

Constant monitoring of legislative tests. Work to ensure that all Data Protection 

policies are in place and up to date, including ongoing review of the ROPA. 

Developing a bespoke data breach procedure for all staff.  Ensure FOI/EIR 

requests are correctly managed to ensure compliance with DPA and minimise 

data breaches arising from incorrect handling. Write a new retention policy and 

records management policies, including retention and redacting, across the 

councils, review third party contractors and contracts to ensure requirements for 

processing personal data processing policies are accurately recorded. Community 

hub developing procedures to manage GDPR.

Jul-22

 South Oxfordshire District Council  Corporate Risk Register

SOUTH Page 1

P
age 93

A
genda Item

 11



9

Sc                                                                        Procedural -

Health and safety

Failing to have an effective health and safety management 

system in place and lack of resource to support, may result in:  a 

fatality, illness or injury to staff or anyone else affected by our 

business; damage to property; legal action by HSE; civil claims 

and increased costs.

8

Mark Stone, Adrianna 

Partridge, Suzanne Malcolm

Health & Safety advisor  in place however the Senior Health and Safety Advisor post is vacant (since June 

2021). After the fundamental review of Health & Safety management system was undertaken and SMT 

and JAGC approved, the subsequent action plan  is being progressed. 

Items covered are:  the principle of a Corporate Landlord Model for properties, re-established monthly 

reporting to SMT which includes agreed KPI's, regular joint reporting between Health & Safety, Risk & 

Insurance to enable risks to be proactively managed.   

Write policies aligning to this to follow, including first aid, DSE, lone working, hybrid working etc.

Home DSE checks  have been undertaken and are reviewed . A number of H&S training including Lone 

Workers courses are now on LEAH for all staff to access.

New H&S Policy published in January 2022. Incidents continue to be reported and investigated. Number of 

reportable incidents low.

 

Training organised by H&S, including fire warden, first aid, ladder inspection etc, plus LEAH modules in 

development to mitigate risks.

Mark Minion/David Fairall

6 Y

Recruit to CIPFA Stage 2 findings for Property Asset management and Senior 

Health and Safety Advisor (vacant post since June 2021). Continue to develop all 

Health & Safety policies: hybrid woring;DSE;Lone worker etc.                                                                                                                                                                                                       

.

Continue to encourage and support reporting of incidents.

Corporate Landlord should confirm where roles and responsibilities sit i.e. duty 

manager. 

Training matrix to be developed to ensure everyone has required training for their 

role from a H&S perspective

Jul-22

58

Sa IT Security IT and data security compromised due to remote working 

and naive user behaviour, which may result in data breach and 

fines/loss of reputation

8

Adrianna Partridge Regular monitoring and review at triage and SMT. Capita monitoring network for unusual activity and 

reporting to councils Action recommendations from security audit regard staff behaviours and awareness 

particularly during remote working. Update Jarvis pages etc. Cyber and data security awareness 

campaign22/23 launched  to raise awareness to all staff working remotely first key message Phishing with 

posters and Jarvis popup.Regular monthly Cyber Group Meetings. Metacompliance Training Modules are 

being uploaded on Leah for all staff and councillors.        Multifactor authentication deployed to all 

councillors and officers to added an additional layer of security when logging into Office365 (already used 

for VPN). Regular comms updates to councillors and staff on cyber-security themes highlighting key 

messages on tips and information to avoid falling prey to cyber-scams and phishing attacks.

All Service Managers

6 Y

Continue to monitor and increase awareness throughout the year through 

Metacompliance and comms.  Continued comms messages to staff and 

councillors on current threats, and known vulnerabilities being exploited, 

highlighting awareness and personal responsibility on being ‘secure’

Jul-22

23

Sf  Planning Lack of informed and consistent decision making across the 

councils due to some members wishing to follow their democratic 

right to 'call in' planning decisions and go against the planning 

officer advice results in increase in no's of appeals and JRT's, 

increased costs, loss of infrastructure funding and loss of council 

reputation. 

7

Adrian Duffield The Heads of Service, section 151 and monitoring officers inform and advise relevant councillors on 

consequences and impact of planning decisions and legal, financial and policy implications of decisions. 

 

We have a scheduled programme of training for 2022 for Committee members and cabinet members on 

the planning process, material planning considerations and implications and consequences of planning 

decisions in the local and national context.  We have held recent sessions on:

-	the emerging changes with the Building Control Regulations

-	Planning Advisory Service provided material planning consideration training for Committee Members (2 x 

events for each Council)

We have a session in the Corporate calendar for a combined ecology, trees and conservation training 

event in June 

We will also be looking to programme sessions on planning appeals, 5 yr housing land supply and the Joint 

Design Guide later in the year. 

We are also working with the Consultation and customer engagement team to improve communication 

with local residents and parishes 

Adrian Duffield

2/3 Y

Maintain a consistent approach to briefing councillors on legal, financial and 

policy implications of making planning application decisions. 

Provide support to parishes with regular updates and communications on reasons 

for planning decisions in the local and national context. 

Jul-22

66 Se Finance

Failure to consider the impact of war in Ukraine on Council 

finances whereby expenditure may increase faster than income 

due to inability to increase council tax at the same rate and may 

impact the economic viability of specific services within the 

districts in the short to medium term.
7 Mark Stone

Monitor impact of war in Ukraine and assess income and expenditure through budget monitoring 

throughout 2022/23 to determine if in-year contingency is sufficient. Budget setting for future years will 

need to reflect impact of the war on the council's finances.  

Simon Hewings 2/3 Y

Work with other councils and national bodies to demonstrate impact of war on 

council finances and lobby for further funding
Jul-22

4

Sa                                                                        Security - 

resources

Failure to manage the security of all council owned assets 

including council offices may result in an incident  or intruder 

entering the building putting our staff and visitors at risk or 

potential injury claims. 

6

Adrianna Partridge/Suzanne 

Malcolm/ James Carpenter

135 Reopened to staff as per the stage 2 of roadmap to recovery following protocols of booking and 

recording entry via secure pass doors.

Didcot Gateway Security: Outside consultants advising on security for new premises.  Cornerstone and 

community centres have designated key holders and security checks as part daily operations.

Corporate Landlord Model: Provides clarity on roles and responsibilities.

Terror threat level decreased to Substantial in Feb 22, gross risk reduced to 6 Amber.

Remain alert to  PROTECT draft Legislation and guidance.

Heads of Service

2/3 Y

 Monitor security plans across all council owned assets. Jul-22

41

Sa Security - 

resources

Major incident in the district - failure to adequately respond to a 

major incident affecting our residents may result in legal action 

(corporate manslaughter/environmental pollution) and loss of 

reputation. 

5

Adrianna Partridge The council has an Emergency Planning Officer (EPO) within the Programmes and Assurance team.  The 

team have up to date Emergency Plans which include establishing a Crisis Response Team and cover 

appropriate escalations to deal with Major Incidents. 

The EPO attends TVLRF and Oxfordshire County Council meetings on a regular basis to ensure joint 

working and understanding of roles and responsibilities in the event of an emergency incident. The team 

receives and reviews regular updates from the Local Resilience Forum (LRF) partners and Resilience 

Direct.  

To respond to an incident the LRF would ‘stand up’ an SCG or TCG  as appropriate and would call upon 

partners to allocate resources as indicated in agreed plans. This could include a scientific technical 

advisory cell (STAC) in the event of environmental issues. A major incident would be responded to by the 

relevant partner agencies, utilising Joint Emergency Services Interoperability Programme (JESIP) 

principles. 

The team keep up to date with the latest developments, regularly review internal plans and arrangements, 

undertake training and participate in emergency planning incident exercises. Successfully undertook 

Golden Chariot Exercise with OCC ,updated plans accordingly.

Ben Coleman/Harry 

Barrington-Mountford

2/3 Y

Plan to carry  out  test of our own cascade call system following Golden Chariot 

de brief . Look into feasibility of running a cyber exercise.
Jul-22

SOUTH Page 2

P
age 94

A
genda Item

 11



21

Sa Procedural/         

regulatory

Changes in legislation and government policy,  may impact 

the operational delivery of the councils' corporate objectives. 

6

Adrianna Partridge/ Harry 

Barrington-Mountford

 Environment Bill enshrined in law with effect from 10 Nov 2021. Insight and Policy Team researching 

implications .  A number of DEFRA consultations on the new Environment Act have been responded to. 

Most recently a collaborative response across, Biodiversity, Climate, Waste and Air Quality teams for input 

into the consultation environmental targets. We continue to use the responses to these as a powerful 

lobbying and feedback tool.

Climate & Biodiversity Team Leader in post who will review the specific requirements for both Councils to 

ensure compliance to new Environment Act obligations. 

A waste procurement expert is employed to support the waste contract procurement, planned interim 

contract with BIFFA at present until all implications are known.

Building Safely Bill emerging with implications for building control relating to fire safety..

Levelling up and regeneration bill monitoring potential implications for the councils.  

Michelle Wells

2/3 Y

 Review options to extend existing Biffa contract for Waste in light of potential 

changes in the Environment Bill until changes are understood.

Planning: Senior officer training for building safely bill planned for Jan 2022 - both 

South and Vale 

Continuation of surveillance of further DEFRA announcements on the 

Environment Act and input into consultations held. Monitor impact on Affordable 

housing,infrastruture on planning as a result of the Levelling up and regeneration 

Bill.   Govt will consult on refugees dispersal schemes monitor impact on 

councils.

Jul-22

15

Sc Contract/Procedu

ral

Failure of third party contracts to deliver acceptable levels 

of statutory service, resulting in non compliance of  councils 

statutory obligations , reduction of service provision, inefficient 

operations, financial penalties and increased costs.

5

Simon Hewings Methodology to report service breaches are in place, this provides evidence to use in contract re-

negotiation. Contracts continue to be under review with focus on lessons learned. Governance structure in 

place and regular monitoring meetings held. Annual Performance Reports Scrutiny reviews projects as part 

of Corporate Delivery Framework.  Performance reporting process has been embedded to ensure 

openness and transparency. Provision of effective contract monitoring training for staff. Consider 

succession planning for hand over of contracts to ensure consistency and that focus is maintained. Council 

waste contract procurement to incorporate contract monitoring requirements.

All Heads of Service

2/3 Y

Possible central contract monitoring group linked to SMT to review and report on 

contractual obligations and revisit contracts.  Management structure includes 

Head of Service and service management reporting on  contract KPI's  quarterly. 

Jul-22

27

Se                                                                        Safeguarding Failure to deliver council safeguarding responsibilities may 

result in loss of reputation and civil claims if a safeguarding 

incident occurs in our districts and we have not followed the 

stipulated procedures and protocols of reporting.
5

Adrianna Partridge Suzanne 

Malcolm Patrick Arran

Designated safeguarding officer (DSO) Adrianna Partridge  and deputies, Suzanne Malcolm and Patrick 

Arran, in place. Cases referred to DSO which do not meet the threshold can be referred to monthly Joint 

Tasking Meeting for multi-agency review.  Training ongoing

Oxfordshire County Council conducts a joint annual audit incorporating the standards from the 

safeguarding self-assessment against the Children Act 2004 (s11 audit) as well as the standards 

developed for Adult Services.  As part of this audit we submit an annual return which is subject to peer 

review. 

Diane Foster

2/3 Y

New Leads to complete safeguarding training. Patrick Arran to commence 

training.
Jul-22

NEW 67

Sa Resources 

personal security

Failure to support and equip staff for hybrid working may result 

in poor morale and wellbeing.

5

Adrianna Partridge/Mark 

Minion

Decision confirmed to move to Abbey House as business continuity measure, meaning limited space to 

work in one office space. However, comms sent to remind people that there is other bookable office / 

meeting room space, such as Cornerstone, Beacon, GWP, so no mandate to work from home specifically. 

People can also work from other suitable external locations and/or other people's houses or shared spaces 

to mitigate potential loneliness.Wellbeing team reorganised to promote more community / interactive 

events.Launched CEO Q&A sesiosn with teams.Regular staff comms.

Mark Minion/ David Fairall

2/3 Y

Continue to promote wellbeing initiatives

Publish hybrid working policy. 

Continue to remind people of options other than working from home

Jul-22

14

Se Sg Finance Failure to maximise opportunities to realise areas of 

revenue growth may impact overall future council finances.  

4

Mark Stone, Adrianna 

Partridge, Suzanne Malcolm 

All Heads of Service to be vigilant in terms of new funding streams and opportunities and ensure that fees 

and charges relate to the budgeted cost of operating the service/scheme, are reasonably set and reviewed 

regularly as highlighted in the recent budget challenge process. Suzanne Malcolm to look for future 

revenue growth opportunities.

Simon Hewings

2/3 Y

Jul-22

SOUTH Page 3

P
age 95

A
genda Item

 11



VWHDC Corporate Strategic Themes

Va All themes

Vb Providing the homes people need

Vc Tackling Climate Emergency

Vd Building Healthy Communities

Ve Building Stable Finances

Vf Working in Partnership

Vg Working in an open and inclusive way

A B C D E F G H I J K L

Risk No/Ref Corporate 

Strategic 

Theme

Risk category Risk description / consequences Gross risk 

rating

Risk owner Mitigation actions Action owner Net risk 

rating

Tolerable Y/N Further mitigation actions if required Review by when

50

Va Operational Third party  contractors Business Continuity Plan (BCP) 

and files back ups are not fit for purpose and may result in 

poor customer service and loss of council reputation if there  

a) is  failure of IT infrastructure.

b) Disaster Recovery  Incident

8

Mark Stone, Adrianna 

Partridge, Suzanne 

Malcolm

IT

There is a review of the IT Business continuity Plan (BCP) across 5CP . Ongoing review council  Business Resilience 

Plans (BRP's)  IT arrangements .

Capita have 30 days of back up  at any one time. 

Because there is no immutable backup of councils’ data and application within Capita network,

5C partners are exploring implementation of offline backups for council data stored on Capita network via 3rd party 

supplier. 

External funding has been provided to assist in implementation and deployment. No dates have been provided at this 

time.

CAPITA are now deliverig abnnu;la DR tests for 5CP, next schedule test is end of July' 22

All other Third Party Contractors

Review all Third Party  BCP's to ensure that they are fit for purpose. 

All Service Managers

8 Y

No remote back up from CAPITA currently. Discussions are ongoing fro the  

planned separation of Office 365 from 5CP and move IT services to Azure 

(cloud) delayed due to increased cost to undertake this work, hence this net 

risk rating has not been mitigated down. Currently ETA end of 2022 early 

2023 , subject to further discussion.

Review procurement procedures to include Third Party BCPs .

Develop training on contract management  and monitoring to  ensure the 

council manage performance effectively.

Maintain Spreadsheet of Third Party Market performance Share price to 

monitor potential issues with contractor viability/performance. Continue to 

monitor the situation.  External 3rd party backups will still be needed. Due to 

constant delays the net risk has increased to 8

CAPITA are proposing to move all of the 5CP servers to their MS Azure 

environment, this will remove conuncil reliance on CAPITA servers reuslting in 

improved resilence and availability.

Jul-22

67

Va Technology security IT Cybersecurity breach due to inadequate security 

protection of the councils external website may lead to the 

council systems and data being compromised and result in 

council financial and reputation loss.

8

Adrianna Partridge   The council has an experienced  information governance officer and data protection officer in post. A senior IT manager 

has been trained and now holds a  certificate in  Cyber security (CISM)

Cyber and data security working group which includes members from  IT, Risk and Insurance, Business continuity and 

the Data protection Officer are working through the data security Internal Audit recommendations ;have instigated Cyber 

and Data Security awareness campaigns to improve user awareness whilst working from home.

The councils Emergency Planning/Business Continuity officer currently chairs the TVLRF Cyber Resilience Working 

Group which meets quarterly to share learning and discuss cyber risks. Partner agencies share learning and warn and 

inform on any breaches to LRF partners.

The councils were chosen by the LGA to undergo an external LGA cyber audit. 

The councils websites are now hosted on a Government approved hosting platform external to CAPITA. It is now 

monitored and managed , the updates to Wordpress software are also updated regularly. What is excluded is updates 

as result of vulnerabilities to SAV  specific modules requires monitoring.

Simon Turner

6 Y

 New applications being deployed directly as Software as a Service (SaaS) 

will have Single-Sign On (SSO) protocols enabled. SSO delivers login to the 

SaaS application directly to an end-user by automating the login via their 

Microsoft 365 credentials , website admin.This makes is harder for cyber-

criminals to access these applications without a legitimate M365 login. It also 

improves leaver access to applications as accounts are automatically 

disabled across all SSO systems when the Capita login account is 

closed.Cyber incident plan for SAV drafted for review.

Jul-22

2

Va                                                                        Technology security IT Cybersecurity breach due to inadequate security 

protection of the Software as Service non cloud applications 

(Zellis/Unit 4 etc) may lead to the council systems and data 

being compromised and result in council financial and 

reputation loss.

8

Adrianna Partridge CAPITA information security infrastructure provides continuous updates of security software, firewalls and patches. The 

5CP Information security group regularly meets to discuss issues and mitigation actions.                                                                                                                                                                                                                  

The council has an experienced  information governance officer and data protection officer in post. A senior IT manager 

has been trained and now holds a  certificate in  Cyber security (CISM)

Cyber and data security working group which includes members from  IT, Risk and Insurance, Business continuity and 

the Data protection Officer are working through the data security Internal Audit recommendations ;have instigated Cyber 

and Data Security awareness campaigns to improve user awareness whilst working from home.

The councils Emergency Planning/Business Continuity officer currently chairs the TVLRF Cyber Resilience Working 

Group which meets quarterly to share learning and discuss cyber risks. Partner agencies share learning and warn and 

inform on any breaches to LRF partners.

 Multifactor authentication (MFA) has been deployed to all staff and councillors. Capita VPN already has MFA. By adding 

additional layer of authentication it makes it difficult for login account to be compromised as an additional item of security 

is needed to using a password. Account passwords lengths increased across all accounts. Capita are doing annual 

penetration tests as a result of that a revised action plan of vulnerabilities is produced and worked through with each of 

the 5CP. Monthly updates are held with Capita security team on progress. This is a continuous programme as there are 

new vulnerabilities appearing all the time. We are now members of SEGWARP a local government security forum in the 

SE.

Simon Turner

6 Y

Metacompliance Training Modules have been purchased and will be rolled out 

to all staff and councillors on LEAH.Awaiting configuration of LEAH to design 

the training modules for staff. Review of Cllr awareness underway with 30 

min briefings and regular In Focus updates to be agreed .                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   

Looking to implement single sign in of council networks using S/V credentials 

which will provide an extra level of complexity. This is dependent upon the 

5CP tenancy split in 2022.  New applications being deployed directly as 

Software as a Service will have Single-Sign On (SSO) protocols enabled. 

SSO delivers login to the SaaS application directly to an end-user by 

automating the login via their Microsoft 365 credentials. This makes is harder 

for cyber-criminals to access these applications without a legitimate M365 

login. It also improves leaver access to applications as accounts are 

automatically disabled across all SSO systems when the Capita login account 

is closed.      

Jul-22

11

Vg Procedural/         

regulatory

Failure to fulfil the  Data Protection legislative 

requirements may result in fines, insurance claims and 

reputational damage if data is breached or a challenge is 

made

8

Patrick Arran (DPO)   Information Governance and Data Protection role provides dedicated support to all teams as well as work to 

develop/review the corporate framework and all relevant policies.  Close liaison with Legal on data sharing agreements 

and review of contract clauses.  Additional Information Governance Officer is a permanent post . Updates to Record of 

Processing Activities (ROPA) during 20/21 to be embedded as a regular review process.  Data Protection Impact 

Assessments ( DPIAs) considered for all new processes and Data Protection Team/Officer advice sought on all new 

projects. Data protection training for all staff on LEAH.  Internal Audit of Data Protection  satisfactory assurance. Keep 

up to date with guidance from the information Commissioner and other bodies in relation to data protection and 

information rights. We are undertaking assurance work and completing the ICO assurance framework.

Working from abroad Policy in place to ensure staff are aware of requirements

Sandy Bayley

6 Y

Constant monitoring of legislative tests. Work to ensure that all Data 

Protection policies are in place and up to date, including ongoing review of 

the ROPA. Developing a bespoke data breach procedure for all staff.  

Ensure FOI/EIR requests are correctly managed to ensure compliance with 

DPA and minimise data breaches arising from incorrect handling. Write a new 

retention policy and records management policies, including retention and 

redacting, across the councils, review third party contractors and contracts to 

ensure requirements for processing personal data processing policies are 

accurately recorded. Community hub developing proceduresto manage 

GDPR.

Jul-22

9

Vb                                                                        Procedural -Health 

and safety

Failing to have an effective health and safety 

management system in place and lack of resource to 

support, may result in:  a fatality, illness or injury to staff or 

anyone else affected by our business; damage to property; 

legal action by HSE; civil claims and increased costs.

8

Mark Stone,Adrianna 

Partridge, Suzanne 

Malcolm

Health & Safety advisor  in place however the Senior Health and Safety Advisor post is vacant (since June 2021). After 

the fundamental review of Health & Safety management system was undertaken and SMT and JAGC approved, the 

subsequent action plan  is being progressed. 

Items covered are:  the principle of a Corporate Landlord Model for properties, re-established monthly reporting to SMT 

which includes agreed KPI's, regular joint reporting between Health & Safety, Risk & Insurance to enable risks to be 

proactively managed.   

Write policies aligning to this to follow, including first aid, DSE, lone working, hybrid working etc.

Home DSE checks  have been undertaken and are reviewed . A number of H&S training including Lone Workers courses 

are now on LEAH for all staff to access.

New H&S Policy published in January 2022. Incidents continue to be reported and investigated. Number of reportable 

incidents low.

 

Training organised by H&S, including fire warden, first aid, ladder inspection etc, plus LEAH modules in development to 

mitigate risks.

Mark Minion/David Fairall

6 Y

Recruit to CIPFA Stage 2 findings for Property Asset management and 

Senior Health and Safety Advisor (vacant post since June 2021)

                                                                                      Continue to 

develop all Health & Safety policies: hybrid woring;DSE;Lone worker etc.                                                                                                                                                                                                       

.

Continue to encourage and support reporting of incidents.

Corporate Landlord should confirm where roles and responsibilities sit i.e. 

duty manager. 

Training matrix to be developed to ensure everyone has required training for 

their role from a H&S perspective

Jul-22

62

Va IT Security IT and data security compromised due to remote working 

and naive user behaviour, which may result in data breach 

and fines/loss of reputation

8

Adrianna Partridge Regular monitoring and review at triage and SMT. Capita monitoring network for unusual activity and reporting to councils 

Action recommendations from security audit regard staff behaviours and awareness particularly during remote working. 

Update Jarvis pages etc. Cyber and data security awareness campaign22/23 launched  to raise awareness to all staff 

working remotely first key message Phishing with posters and Jarvis popup.Regular monthly Cyber Group Meetings. 

Metacompliance Training Modules are being uploaded on Leah for all staff and councillors. 

Multifactor authentication deployed to all councillors and officers to added an additional layer of security when logging 

into Office365 (already used for VPN). Regular comms updates to councillors and staff on cyber-security themes 

highlighting key messages on tips and information to avoid falling prey to cyber-scams and phishing attacks.

All Service Managers

6 Y

Continue to monitor and increase awareness throughout the year through 

Metacompliance and comms.  Continued comms messages to staff and 

councillors on current threats, and known vulnerabilities being exploited, 

highlighting awareness and personal responsibility on being ‘secure’

Jul-22

68 Ve Finance

Failure to consider the impact of war in Ukraine on 

Council finances whereby expenditure may increase faster 

than income due to inability to increase council tax at the same 

rate and may impact the economic viability of specific services 

within the districts in the short to medium term.

7 Mark Stone

Monitor impact of war in Ukraine and assess income and expenditure through budget monitoring throughout 2022/23 to 

determine if in-year contingency is sufficient. Budget setting for future years will need to reflect impact of the war on the 

council's finances.  

Simon Hewings 2/3 Y
Work with other councils and national bodies to demonstrate impact of war 

on council finances and lobby for further funding

Jul-22

 Corporate Risk Register - Vale of White Horse District Council

VALE 1

P
age 96

A
genda Item

 11



22

Vb   Vf                                                                     Planning Lack of informed and consistent decision making across 

the councils due to some members wishing to follow their 

democratic right to 'call in' planning decisions and go against 

the planning officer advice results in increase in no's of 

appeals and JRT's, increased costs, loss of infrastructure 

funding and loss of council reputation. 

7

Adrian Duffield The Heads of Service, section 151 and monitoring officers inform and advise relevant councillors on consequences and 

impact of planning decisions and legal, financial and policy implications of decisions. 

 

We have a scheduled programme of training for 2022 for Committee members and cabinet members on the planning 

process, material planning considerations and implications and consequences of planning decisions in the local and 

national context.  We have held recent sessions on:

-	the emerging changes with the Building Control Regulations

-	Planning Advisory Service provided material planning consideration training for Committee Members (2 x events for 

each Council)

We have a session in the Corporate calendar for a combined ecology, trees and conservation training event in June 

We will also be looking to programme sessions on planning appeals, 5 yr housing land supply and the Joint Design Guide 

later in the year. 

We are also working with the Consultation and customer engagement team to improve communication with local 

residents and parishes 

Adrian Duffield

2/3 Y

Maintain a consistent approach to briefing councillors on legal, financial and 

policy implications of making planning application decisions. 

Provide support to parishes with regular updates and communications on 

reasons for planning decisions in the local and national context. 

Jul-22

Down from 6- 5

4

Ve Security - resources Failure to manage the security of all council owned 

assets including council offices may result in an incident  or 

intruder entering the building putting our staff and visitors at 

risk or potential injury claims. 
6

Adrianna 

Partridge/Suzanne 

Malcolm/ James 

Carpenter

135 Reopened to staff as per the stage 2 of roadmap to recovery following protocols of booking and recording entry via 

secure pass doors.

Didcot Gateway Security: Outside consultants advising on security for new premises.  Cornerstone and community 

centres have designated key holders and security checks as part daily operations.

Corporate Landlord Model: Provides clarity on roles and responsibilities.

Terror threat level decreased to Substantial in Feb 22, gross risk reduced to 6 Amber.

Remain alert to  PROTECT draft Legislation and guidance.

Heads of Service

2/3 Y

 Monitor security plans across all council owned assets. Jul-22

41

Va Security - resources Major incident in the district. Failure to adequately respond 

to a major incident affecting our residents  may result in legal 

action (corporate manslaughter/environmental pollution) and 

loss of reputation. 

5

Adrianna Partridge The council has an Emergency Planning Officer (EPO) within the Programmes and Assurance team.  The team have up 

to date Emergency Plans which include establishing a Crisis Response Team and cover appropriate escalations to deal 

with Major Incidents. 

The EPO attends TVLRF and Oxfordshire County Council meetings on a regular basis to ensure joint working and 

understanding of roles and responsibilities in the event of an emergency incident. The team receives and reviews regular 

updates from the Local Resilience Forum (LRF) partners and Resilience Direct.  

To respond to an incident the LRF would ‘stand up’ an SCG or TCG  as appropriate and would call upon partners to 

allocate resources as indicated in agreed plans. This could include a scientific technical advisory cell (STAC) in the event 

of environmental issues. A major incident would be responded to by the relevant partner agencies, utilising Joint 

Emergency Services Interoperability Programme (JESIP) principles. 

The team keep up to date with the latest developments, regularly review internal plans and arrangements, undertake 

training and participate in emergency planning incident exercises. Successfully undertook Golden Chariot Exercise with 

OCC ,updated plans accordingly.

Ben Coleman/Harry Barrington-

Mountford

2/3 Y

Plan to carry  out  test of our own cascade call system following Golden 

Chariot de brief . Look into feasibility of running a cyber exercise.

Jul-22

20

Va Procedural/         

regulatory

Changes in legislation and government policy, may impact 

the operational delivery of the councils' corporate objectives. 

5

Adrianna Partridge/ Harry 

Barrington-Mountford

Environment Bill enshrined in law with effect from 10 Nov 2021. Insight and Policy Team researching implications .  A 

number of DEFRA consultations on the new Environment Act have been responded to. Most recently a collaborative 

response across, Biodiversity, Climate, Waste and Air Quality teams for input into the consultation environmental targets. 

We continue to use the responses to these as a powerful lobbying and feedback tool.

Climate & Biodiversity Team Leader in post who will review the specific requirements for both Councils to ensure 

compliance to new Environment Act obligations. 

A waste procurement expert is employed to support the waste contract procurement, planned interim contract with 

BIFFA at present until all implications are known.

Building Safely Bill emerging with implications for building control relating to fire safety..

Levelling up and regeneration bill monitoring potential implications for the councils.  

Michelle Wells

2/3 Y

Planning: Senior officer training for building safely bill planned for Jan 2022 - 

both South and Vale 

Continuation of surveillance of further DEFRA announcements on the 

Environment Act and input into consultations held. Monitor impact on 

Affordable housing,infrastruture on planning as a result of the Levelling up and 

regeneration Bill.   Govt will consult on refugees dispersal schemes monitor 

impact on councils.

Jul-22

15

Va Contracts Failure of third party contracts to deliver acceptable 

levels of statutory service ,resulting in non compliance of  

councils statutory obligations and ,reduction of service 

provision, inefficient operations ,financial penalties and 

increased costs.( Merge  with risk 40)

5

Simon Hewings Methodology to report service breaches are in place, this provides evidence to use in contract re-negotiation. Contracts 

continue to be under review with focus on lessons learned. Governance structure in place and regular monitoring 

meetings held. Annual Performance Reports Scrutiny reviews projects as part of Corporate Delivery Framework.  

Performance reporting process has been embedded to ensure openness and transparency. Provision of effective 

contract monitoring training for staff. Consider succession planning for hand over of contracts to ensure consistency and 

that focus is maintained. Council waste contract procurement to incorporate contract monitoring requirements.

All Heads of Service 

2/3 Y

Planning: Senior officer training for building safely bill planned for Jan 2022 - 

both South and Vale 

Jul-22

27

Vd                                                   Safeguarding Failure to deliver council safeguarding responsibilities 

may result in loss of reputation if a safeguarding incident 

occurs in our districts and we have not followed the stipulated 

procedures and protocols of reporting.

5

Adrianna Partridge 

Suzanne Malcolm Patrick 

Arran

Designated safeguarding officer (DSO) Adrianna Partridge  and deputies, Suzanne Malcolm and Patrick Arran, in place. 

Cases referred to DSO which do not meet the threshold can be referred to monthly Joint Tasking Meeting for multi-

agency review.  Training ongoing

Oxfordshire County Council conducts a joint annual audit incorporating the standards from the safeguarding self-

assessment against the Children Act 2004 (s11 audit) as well as the standards developed for Adult Services.  As part of 

this audit we submit an annual return which is subject to peer review. 

Process in place to protect potential victims of modern slavery (MS1).

Mandatory training appropriate to the level of contact, as a District Council with no social services and education 

responsibilities is available on LEAH.  All staff completed training every 3 years, and new starters complete this as part 

of their induction.  Monthly reports are produced to inform when staff are due training and procedures in place to ensure 

training is completed as required  .  The safeguarding policy has been reviewed and is published on our safeguarding 

page on Jarvis along with guidance on how to report any safeguarding concerns.  

Diane Foster

2/3 Y

New Leads to complete safeguarding training. Patrick Arran to commence 

training.

Jul-22

14

Ve Finance Failure to maximise opportunities to realise areas of 

revenue growth may impact overall future council finances.  

4

Mark Stone, Adrianna 

Partridge, Suzanne 

Malcolm 

All Heads of Service to be vigilant in terms of new funding streams and opportunities and ensure that fees and charges 

relate to the budgeted cost of operating the service/scheme, are reasonably set and reviewed regularly as highlighted in 

the recent budget challenge process. Suzanne Malcolm to look for future revenue growth opportunities.

Simon Hewings

2/3 Y

Jul-22

69

Va Resources personal 

security

Failure to support and equip staff for hybrid working may 

result in poor morale and wellbeing.

5

Adrianna Partridge/Mark 

Minion

Decision confirmed to move to Abbey House as business continuity measure, meaning limited space to work in one office 

space. However, comms sent to remind people that there is other bookable office / meeting room space, such as 

Cornerstone, Beacon, GWP, so no mandate to work from home specifically. People can also work from other suitable 

external locations and/or other people's houses or shared spaces to mitigate potential loneliness.Wellbeing team 

reorganised to promote more community / interactive events.Launched CEO Q&A sesiosn with teams.Regular staff 

comms.

Mark Minion/ David Fairall

2/3 Y

Continue to promote wellbeing initiatives

Publish hybrid working policy. 

Continue to remind people of options other than working from home

Jul-22

VALE 2

P
age 97

A
genda Item

 11



South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils’ Audit and Governance Work Programme 

Audit and Governance 

Work Programme 

containing Joint Audit and Governance  
Committee work to be undertaken  

JULY 2022 – NOVEMBER 2022 
 

       
 

 
What is the work programme? 
 
The Audit and Governance Work Programme belongs to South Oxfordshire District Council’s and Vale of White Horse District Council’s 
Joint Audit and Governance Committee and sets out a schedule of work for the period shown above.  It is a rolling plan, subject to 
change at each committee meeting; however, the councils may allocate additional work without notice.   
 

Item title Meeting date Lead officer Why is it here? Scope Notes 

Amended pension 
policy and policy 
statements 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 5 Jul 
2022 

David Fairall, 
People and 
Culture Manager 
david.fairall@sou
thandvale.gov.uk 

The committee is 
required to consider and 
approve the pension 
policy and discretionary 
policies of both councils. 

To approve the 
pension policy and 
discretionary policies 
of both councils. 
 

 

Internal audit activity 
report - first quarter 
2022/23 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 5 Jul 
2022 

Victoria Dorman-
Smith, Internal 
Audit Manager 
victoria.dorman-
smith@southand
vale.gov.uk 

The council audits its 
services through the 
internal audit service in 
line with the approved 
internal audit plan. The 
report will summarise 
the outcomes of recent 
audit activity for the 
committee to consider. 

The committee is 
asked to review the 
report and the main 
issues arising and 
seek assurance that 
action has been or will 
be taken as necessary. 
 

 

P
age 98

A
genda Item

 12



Item title Meeting date Lead officer Why is it here? Scope Notes 

South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils’ Audit and Governance Work Programme 

Internal audit 
management report - 
first quarter 2022/23 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 5 Jul 
2022 

Victoria Dorman-
Smith, Internal 
Audit Manager 
victoria.dorman-
smith@southand
vale.gov.uk 

The committee monitors 
the effectiveness of 
internal audit each 
quarter against the audit 
plan. 

To report on 
management issues, 
summarise progress 
against the audit pan, 
and summarise 
priorities. 
 

 

Internal audit annual 
report 2021/22 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 5 Jul 
2022 

Victoria Dorman-
Smith, Internal 
Audit Manager 
victoria.dorman-
smith@southand
vale.gov.uk 

To review the work of 
internal audit in 
2021/22. 

To monitor the 
effectiveness of 
internal audit and to 
make 
recommendations for 
changes as necessary. 
 

 

Health and safety 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 5 Jul 
2022 

Deborah Porter 
Deborah.Porter@
southandvale.gov
.uk 

The committee agreed 
to receive regular 
reports on health and 
safety. 

To review and 
comment on the 
report. 
 

 

Corporate risk review 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 5 Jul 
2022 

Harry Barrington-
Mountford, 
Interim Head of 
Policy and 
Programmes 
harry.barrington-
mountford@sout
handvale.gov.uk 

The committee agreed 
to receive regular 
progress reports on the 
implementation of the 
risk management 
framework. 

To review and 
comment on progress. 
 

 

Treasury management 
outturn report - 
2021/22 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 27 
Sep 2022 

Simon Hewings, 
Head of Finance 
simon.hewings@
southandvale.gov
.uk 

The committee is 
responsible for 
monitoring the councils' 
treasury management 
activity. 

To consider the 
2021/22 outturn report 
and make 
recommendations to 
Cabinet. 
 

 

P
age 99

A
genda Item

 12



Item title Meeting date Lead officer Why is it here? Scope Notes 

South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils’ Audit and Governance Work Programme 

Internal audit activity 
report - second quarter 
2022/23 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 27 
Sep 2022 

Victoria Dorman-
Smith, Internal 
Audit Manager 
victoria.dorman-
smith@southand
vale.gov.uk 

The council audits its 
services through the 
internal audit service in 
line with the approved 
internal audit plan 
2021/22. The report will 
summarise the 
outcomes of recent 
internal audit activity for 
the committee to 
consider. 

The committee is 
asked to review the 
report and the main 
issues arising and 
seek assurance that 
action has been or will 
be taken where 
necessary. 
 
 

 

Internal audit 
management report - 
second quarter 
2022/23 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 27 
Sep 2022 

Victoria Dorman-
Smith, Internal 
Audit Manager 
victoria.dorman-
smith@southand
vale.gov.uk 

The committee monitors 
the effectiveness of 
internal audit each 
quarter against the 
approved audit plan.  

To report on 
management issues, 
summarise progress 
against the audit plan, 
and summarise 
priorities. 
 

 

Statement of accounts 
2021/22 - verbal update 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 27 
Sep 2022 

Simon Hewings, 
Head of Finance 
simon.hewings@
southandvale.gov
.uk 

To receive an update on 
the progress of the 
2021/22 statement of 
accounts. 

 
 

 

Corporate landlord 
project - update 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 27 
Sep 2022 

James Carpenter, 
Interim Head of 
Development and 
Corporate 
Landlord 
james.carpenter
@southandvale.g
ov.uk 

The committee agreed 
to receive a progress 
update on the corporate 
landlord project. 

To consider the update 
and provide any 
comments to officers. 
 

 

P
age 100

A
genda Item

 12



Item title Meeting date Lead officer Why is it here? Scope Notes 

South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils’ Audit and Governance Work Programme 

Code of conduct 
annual report - 2021/22 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 27 
Sep 2022 

Patrick Arran, 
Head of Legal 
and Democratic 
patrick.arran@so
uthandvale.gov.u
k 

The committee has 
responsibility for having 
an overview of the 
standards of conduct 
framework for 
councillors, any co-
opted members and 
parish councillors. 

To review operation of 
the code of conduct. 
 

 

Statement of accounts 
2021/22 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 
November 2022 
(Provisional) 

Simon Hewings, 
Head of Finance 
simon.hewings@
southandvale.gov
.uk 

Each year the 
committee must 
approve each council's 
statement of accounts 
and ensure they comply 
with the requirements of 
accounting practice. 

The committee is 
asked to approve each 
council's statement of 
accounts and 
supporting documents 
for final sign-off by the 
committee's co-chairs 
and the councils' 
external auditor. 
 

 

 

 

P
age 101

A
genda Item

 12


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Amended Pension Policy and Policy Statements
	Draft Pension Policy 6 June 2022
	SODC Employer Discretionary Policy List and Guidance DRAFT for SMT 6 June 22
	VWHDC Employer Discretionary Policy List and Guidance DRAFT for SMT 6 June 22

	7 Internal audit activity report - first quarter 2022/23
	8 Internal audit management report - first quarter 2022/23
	App 1a - Progress Against Internal Audit Plan 2022-2023
	App 1b - Progress Against Internal Audit Plan 2022-2023

	9 Internal audit annual report 2021/22
	App 1a - Progress Against Internal Audit Plan 2021-2022
	App 1b - Progress Against Internal Audit Plan 2021-2022
	App 2 - Internal Audit Plan 2021-2022 Reconciliation to Actuals
	App 3 - Internal Audit Feedback 2021-2022

	10 Health and safety
	11 Corporate risk review
	17.06.2022   SOUTH CORP RR  JAGC
	17.06.2022  VALE of WHITE HORSE CORP RR JAGC

	12 Work programme

